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          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Today's hearing of

          3  the City Council's Committee on Transportation.  My

          4  name is John Liu.  I have the privilege of Chairing

          5  this Committee.

          6                 Today the Committee will consider

          7  propose Intro No. 465- A.  This is a first hearing

          8  on the proposed legislation, which seeks to create a

          9  notification and review process in the event that a

         10  publicly mapped street is closed, or proposed to be

         11  closed, for more than forty- five days.

         12                 The purpose of the legislation is to

         13  keep the affected community informed of any proposed

         14  or actual street closure, partial or complete, and

         15  to permit the local community the opportunity to

         16  request a reassessment and community impact finding,

         17  should the street remain closed or should it be

         18  projected to be closed for more than forty- five

         19  days.  The Council Member in whose district the

         20  street at issue is located is also to be notified

         21  and may also request a reassessment and community

         22  impact finding.

         23                 The involvement of the affected

         24  community and its local elected officials, elected

         25  representative is critical to ensuring that the
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          2  reasons why the street is closed, are valid and that

          3  no other reasonable alternative exists to accomplish

          4  the objective for which the street is closed.

          5                 A street closure, partial or

          6  complete, for any length of time, can be extremely

          7  disruptive to efficient traffic movement, both

          8  pedestrian and vehicular, and to the local

          9  environment.  Additionally, a street closure often

         10  creates difficulties for persons seeking to access

         11  local residences and businesses.  Most of all, a

         12  street closure can, and often does, have

         13  devastatingly negative impacts on the local economy.

         14

         15                 The notification and review

         16  mechanisms contained in proposed Intro No. 465- A

         17  are directed at ensuring that a street is closed for

         18  a proper reason and that no feasible and less

         19  disruptive alternative exists and that economic and

         20  logistic impediments are minimized.

         21                 I would like to take a moment to

         22  commend my colleagues for introducing the proposed

         23  legislation.  In particular, I'd like to note that

         24  Council Member Alan Gerson, representing

         25  Councilmanic District 1, was the principal force
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          2  behind the introduction of this bill.  As his

          3  district includes much of Lower Manhattan, his

          4  constituents have perhaps been the most affected by

          5  numerous, and often repetitive, street closing's

          6  largely due to construction activity related to the

          7  World Trade Center attacks.  Despite the

          8  concentration of street closing's in lower

          9  Manhattan, the issue has City- wide application and

         10  ramifications and I'm pleased that this Committee is

         11  looking into this issue today.

         12                 One particular issue is something

         13  that I'm sure Council Member Gerson will speak to.

         14  It has to do with the closures of the streets on

         15  Park Row and the surrounding area.  And that has

         16  led, and this is something that Council Member

         17  Gerson has been pushing very forcefully within our

         18  Council, the fact that emergency and ambulance

         19  services don't have the access to assist and serve

         20  the residents of the area.  That people no longer

         21  have direct access to bus lanes and Access- A- Ride

         22  services, and that in fact, the fact that these

         23  streets have been closed for so long now, they are a

         24  severe impediment to economic recovery.

         25                 Let me ask our esteemed colleague,
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          2  Council Member Alan Gerson to say a few words about

          3  his proposed bill.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Thank you

          5  very much Mr. Chair.  Thank you for your words and

          6  thank you for allowing me to be present and

          7  participate.  I am a guest at this hearing, on this

          8  side of the table, because I do not sit on the

          9  Transportation Committee.  So I thank you for

         10  allowing my participation.  Let me acknowledge, with

         11  my community present, Chair John Liu's dedication

         12  and commitment to our community.  His sensitivity to

         13  the needs of Lower Manhattan and at the same time as

         14  he exhibits the same dedication and commitment and

         15  sensitivity to the Transportation needs of all

         16  communities of the five boroughs of our great City.

         17  I've said this before, and I'll say it countless

         18  times because it deserves to be said, that our City

         19  is fortunate and better off to have John Liu as a

         20  leader on the City Council, and in his capacity as

         21  Chair of the Transportation Committee.  So I thank

         22  you and I should also point out the fact that we are

         23  having this hearing on a relatively expedited basis

         24  during a difficult budget time, is a testament to

         25  Chair Liu's commitment to this issue and to the
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          2  needs of our community.  On behalf of our community

          3  I want to thank you very much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Your quite welcome.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Yes, he

          6  deserves a round of applause.  Let me also

          7  acknowledge, you know, we're very fortunate to have

          8  a City Council that's a true team, and that we come

          9  from all parts of the City and we come together on

         10  behalf of each part of the City and I want to thank

         11  my colleague and my friend Council Member Larry

         12  Seabrook, representing a District in the Bronx.  My

         13  ancestry traces its roots back to the Bronx, so we

         14  have a special kinship.  But I want to let you know,

         15  that Council Member Seabrook has been one of those

         16  Council Members who have been especially supportive

         17  of Lower Manhattan in our time of need and I thank

         18  you very much.

         19                 Let me be very brief because the

         20  testimony we will hear from the Community will

         21  really articulate the points I would make at any

         22  event.  But let me say what this bill, and I'm very

         23  curious to hear the testimony of our Administration

         24  and our Departments represented here, because what

         25  this bill seeks to do, strikes me as a matter of
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          2  common sense, as a matter of good sound public

          3  policy, is nothing more than what should be done as

          4  a matter of course in any event.

          5                 It was only after countless attempts

          6  to get done the type of mitigation and to receive

          7  the type of information that we, the community

          8  needed to deal with this situation and to assure the

          9  health and well- being and economic well being of

         10  the community, that I felt compelled to introduce

         11  this legislation.  I'm glad I was joined by a cross-

         12  section of colleagues from across the City.        It

         13  strikes me that a street, and we have the example of

         14  Park Row which we'll hear about in testimony and we

         15  all know the situation in Park Row and I'll be

         16  addressing that during my questioning and my

         17  comments as the hearing proceeds.  But, any street

         18  in the City is a part and parcel of the fabric of

         19  the community.  It's an artery for central services,

         20  its an artery for egress for coming and going of

         21  people of all ages.  It's a necessary vein for the

         22  economic well- being of the community and it seems

         23  to me that, when we close a street, it just makes

         24  perfect sense.  When we close a publicly mapped

         25  street, that we need to deal with all the
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          2  ramifications of such closure and assure that there

          3  is adequate -- assure first of all that we really do

          4  need to close the street, and if we do, that there

          5  is adequate mitigation.            Several of the

          6  signs say where is the due process. That's really

          7  what this is all about.  We're just simply asking

          8  for basic due process and basic good policy in time

          9  of need and in good times and bad times to protect

         10  the essential well being of each of our communities.

         11

         12                 So I mean, I don't want to preempt

         13  the testimony we're going to hear, although I did

         14  the glean the written testimony submitted, but I was

         15  hoping and I still hope, that this is something we

         16  could agree on cooperatively with the Administration

         17  to implement.  And certainly if you have any

         18  suggestions for improvements in the procedure that

         19  we propose to legislation, I'm very interested in

         20  hearing that.  But I would hope this would not be

         21  adversarial, although I would be terribly

         22  disappointed if it becomes that, but, rather

         23  cooperative in a search to implement a good policy.

         24  Not only for the current Administration but for

         25  future Administrations and future times going
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          2  forward.

          3                 Let me just conclude by pointing out,

          4  this community has lived through the most difficult

          5  and terrible of days on 9/11 and the immediate

          6  aftermath.  This community is in the vicinity, lies

          7  in the vicinity, of Ground Zero.  We went through

          8  the worst of the environmental impact.  We went

          9  through the worst of disruption. In many cases lack

         10  of electricity, lack of phone service, lack of

         11  essential service, uncertainty, fear, in addition to

         12  all the emotional and economic trauma of the result

         13  of that horrific day.         This community through

         14  it all, stayed, remained, committed to rebuilding,

         15  to preserving, and rebuilding a community. Remain

         16  committed to assisting the City in meeting all of

         17  its security needs and meeting all of the needs of

         18  this City to make it through a difficult time to a

         19  greater future.

         20                 Unfortunately, the City has not

         21  reciprocated to the community.  Unfortunately, the

         22  failure of the City to deal with, to mitigate the

         23  Park Row closure, to keep Park Row closed without

         24  adequate explanation and then to do so without

         25  compensating or figuring out a way to make up for
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          2  the impact of it, is just not acceptable.  It's no

          3  longer tolerable.  And this legislation, while it's

          4  intended for, as Chair Liu said, and it's needed for

          5  all streets in this City.  It would immediately

          6  redress the horrible situation, which at this point,

          7  is an unfair, an unjust burden on this community.

          8                 So I look forward to hearing from the

          9  testimony of the Administration.  I'll hope we could

         10  resolve this in a cooperative manner.  I know the

         11  Committee, the fact that Chair Liu, and I'll really

         12  conclude on this note. You'll hear we have a cross

         13  section of residents and tenant leaders and

         14  neighborhood leaders from all of the buildings,

         15  Chatham Green, Chatham Towers and the surrounding

         16  area of Chinatown and Lower Manhattan and this

         17  Community Board, and Community Board III.

         18                 So the fact that we have such a

         19  cross- section on a rainy, dreary day, during work

         20  day hours.  This is not the first time this

         21  community has turned out on this issue, reflects the

         22  total commitment of this community, to this issue,

         23  to resolving this issue, and the solidarity of the

         24  community that the current situation is

         25  unacceptable.  So with no further adieu I look
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          2  forward to hearing from our witnesses.  Thank you

          3  very much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very much

          5  Council Member Gerson.

          6                 Now we've been joined by Committee

          7  Members Council Member Larry Seabrook from the Bronx

          8  and Council Member Oliver Koppell from the Bronx.  I

          9  want to thank the, I want to commend the work of

         10  Mitch Schwartz, sitting to my right, the Counsel to

         11  the Transportation Committee and also John Cho, my

         12  Legislative Director, who stepped out of the room

         13  for a second.

         14                 At this time I would like to invite

         15  David Woloch, who is the Deputy Commissioner of the

         16  Department of Transportation to testify.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Good

         18  morning Chairman Liu, Councilman Gerson, Members of

         19  the Committee.  My name is David Woloch and I am the

         20  Deputy Commissioner for External Affairs for the New

         21  York City Department of Transportation.  I'm joined

         22  by Joe Noto who is the Director of DOT's Office of

         23  Construction, Mitigation and Coordination and

         24  Richard Ocken from the New York City Department of

         25  Design and Construction.
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          2                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          3  discuss Into. 465 A, which would mandate

          4  notification and review processes in the event of

          5  the closure of a publicly mapped street.  Although

          6  the spirit of the bill is one shared by this agency,

          7  the Commissioner and the Mayor, we cannot support

          8  this bill as there are already mechanisms in place

          9  or underway to provide public notice and it would

         10  result in burdensome and unnecessary costs to the

         11  City as well as to overall construction and

         12  development.

         13                 Providing proper and adequate notice

         14  of upcoming major projects requiring street closures

         15  is of great importance to DOT.  Many of our efforts

         16  to improve the communication of information via the

         17  City's web- site (www.nyc.gov) are aimed at

         18  achieving transparency and providing constituents

         19  with information regarding DOT's operations and

         20  projects.  In keeping with this spirit, we have

         21  completed certain initiatives, and are undertaking

         22  several others, whose sole aim is to provide New

         23  Yorkers with information regarding work happening

         24  on, under, and next to the streets.

         25                 One example of this is our placement
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          2  of Traffic Advisories every week on the City's web-

          3  site, whereby we are able to make information

          4  regarding major street closures available to the

          5  public.  In addition to this, we are presently

          6  working on a web- based system designed to give New

          7  Yorkers access through the web, to comprehensive and

          8  up- to- date information on all current permits in

          9  their communities.

         10                 On large projects (including DDC, DOT

         11  bridge, and New York State highway projects) with an

         12  impact on the City's streets is already

         13  comprehensive.  First, preliminary designs are

         14  circulated to the Community Board and elected

         15  officials for comment.  Second, the community is

         16  again contacted once designs are finalized and

         17  before the commencement of the project.  Other

         18  methods of outreach may also include use of a

         19  community liaison, information disseminated through

         20  the press or through the borough commissioner

         21  officers, pre- construction meetings, list serves

         22  and newsletters.

         23                 The Department of Design and

         24  Construction has a Project Browser on its web- site

         25  which includes all of its projects and which
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          2  provides information such as the area map and

          3  project name.  This database may be searched by

          4  Community Board, Council district and physical

          5  location.  Outreach on large upcoming community

          6  projects is also done by other entities that work

          7  under our streets, including the MTA, Con Ed and

          8  other utilities.

          9                 As with the bill's prior notice

         10  requirement, the type of analysis called for in this

         11  bill is already done for projects with significant

         12  community impact.  Many of our large projects do not

         13  stop at a pre- construction analysis of the impact

         14  of the project, but are subject to ongoing

         15  monitoring in order to address any unforeseen

         16  impacts.  For all permit requests, large and small,

         17  DOT's Office of Construction, Mitigation and

         18  Coordination (OCMC) is charged with assuring that

         19  permit stipulations balance the importance of the

         20  work done with the impact upon the community. We are

         21  always mindful of safety, mobility, environmental

         22  and economic impacts.

         23                 This bill however, would place a

         24  burdensome and onerous requirement on DOT as

         25  additional staff would be required to fulfill its
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          2  provisions.  DOT issues approximately 170,000

          3  permits each year for street construction activity,

          4  including permits for approximately 8,400 non-

          5  governmental projects that require a closure of

          6  greater than 45 days.

          7                 We estimate that DOT's budget would

          8  need to increase by nearly $10 million dollars in

          9  order to fund the staff necessary to simply review

         10  the annual average of all 8,400 submitted analyses.

         11  On top of that, for the approximately 500 City

         12  projects each year, we would have to spend more than

         13  $5 million to produce studies for our own

         14  initiatives.

         15                 Just as City projects would

         16  experience a substantial increase in costs, private

         17  industry, particularly small contractors, will be

         18  financially harmed by Intro 465- A.  By virtue of

         19  its analysis requirements and quick timetables,

         20  Intro 465- A will inflate the City's already high

         21  construction costs and private industries already

         22  high in construction costs and slow down the pace of

         23  development.

         24                 Intro 465- A will further damage

         25  construction and development by making projects
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          2  susceptible to challenge and creating the potential

          3  for a proliferation of unfinished projects in the

          4  event of a successful challenge.  This potential

          5  outcome would not only have a substantial negative

          6  impact upon economic development, but could also

          7  pose a public safety hazard.

          8                 Although we agree with the spirit of

          9  what the Council is trying to achieve, we must

         10  respectfully disagree with the manner in which this

         11  bill attempts to accomplish this.  The solutions

         12  proposed by this bill are unnecessary, because DOT

         13  and DDC have already instituted or are working

         14  towards further appropriate mechanisms for providing

         15  proper notice to the community.

         16                 In addition, this bill is potentially

         17  harmful to the City by virtue of the added delay and

         18  additional costs which will be incurred as a result

         19  of the added analysis requirements. Enactment of

         20  this bill would negatively impact the economic well

         21  being of the City as well as the safety of its

         22  citizens.

         23                 Like the Council, we also recognize

         24  the importance of working with the Community Boards

         25  and elected officials and ensuring that they have
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          2  sufficient information regarding projects that

          3  affect their communities.  We appreciate the

          4  Council's concern in this matter and welcome the

          5  opportunity to work with you in order to improve the

          6  manner in which such information is made available.

          7                 Once again, thank you for the

          8  opportunity to testify before you today.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very much

         10  Deputy Commissioner Woloch.  I will have a few

         11  questions and I know that my colleagues will as

         12  well.

         13                 You mentioned that there are 170

         14  thousand permits for construction and therefore for

         15  street closures in the City?  Is that a very large

         16  number, is that abnormally large or, is it standard?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I think

         18  it's reflective of the extent of our street system

         19  and all the activities that happens along side

         20  streets and under the streets.  That's what this

         21  bill is essentially about when you think about it

         22  City- wide.  I mean we issue hundreds of permits

         23  every day.  It gets at all the work that happens on

         24  the streets every day throughout every community in

         25  the City and work that has to happen in order for us
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          2  to live and get basic services.

          3                 The utilities have to get under the

          4  streets to make sure we have electricity, to make

          5  sure we have phone service. Improvements have to be

          6  made to buildings throughout the City that require

          7  the taking of parts of our streets, parts of lanes,

          8  sometimes whole lanes.  There's work that has to

          9  happen everyday to maintain the street system, in

         10  terms of milling and repaving and reconstruction.

         11  And when you add all of this together there's a lot

         12  of work that has to happen.

         13                 I think the fundamental challenge for

         14  DOT is to balance all this work with the use that

         15  the streets provides to communities, to the access

         16  and the mobility and clearly the streets are

         17  important to every commercial entity.   They want to

         18  make sure that they can get to their customers.

         19  Residences want to be able to get to their homes as

         20  easily as possible.  This balancing act is something

         21  that happens everyday in every community throughout

         22  the City.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Now, you mentioned

         24  that these permits and street closures are necessary

         25  for the construction and development that takes
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          2  place throughout the City.  What about street

          3  closures that have very little to do with

          4  construction and building?  Do they form a

          5  significant portion of the 170 thousand permits for

          6  street closures?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  The

          8  universe of 170 thousand, all, in some way, shape or

          9  form, reflects construction activity of one sort or

         10  another.  There are also other permits that are

         11  given out by other agencies that DOT gets

         12  information on but doesn't necessarily issue the

         13  permits.  Such as permits for parades, permits for

         14  street fairs, permits for film shoots.  But that 170

         15  thousand is all construction related.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  All 170 thousand

         17  are construction related?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  In one

         19  way, shape or form.  Just to give you an example,

         20  just to show you the wide extent, I think we've

         21  heard, you've heard testimony here before on issues

         22  related to canopy's.  When work has to be done on a

         23  canopy, that falls within that universe.  So it

         24  ranges from small construction, it might take up

         25  just part of a sidewalk to large construction, that
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          2  would require the closure of whole streets.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Are there other

          4  kinds of street closing permits that are issued that

          5  don't have anything to do with construction and

          6  building?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Yes.

          8  There are a few. I think I just mentioned the ones

          9  that are issued by other agencies related to

         10  parades, street fairs and film.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So we've identified

         12  two kinds of street closures.  One, that has to do,

         13  the vast majority, it seems the 170 thousand of them

         14  have to do with construction and building, of one

         15  type or another.  Another, has to do with specific

         16  events that are, events such as, street fairs and

         17  festivals and parades. Are there any other kinds of

         18  permits that the DOT issues for street closures?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  No.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So, I understand

         21  that this bill has city- wide ramifications but, as

         22  Council Member Gerson stated, the impetus behind

         23  this bill is to try to examine what has happened

         24  with the Park Row situation and find a solution out

         25  of that.  Is the Park Row street closure due to
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          2  construction and building?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  No.

          4  That's not my understanding.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Is there going to

          6  be a parade or festival on Park Row?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I don't

          8  believe so.              CHAIRPERSON LIU:  It's been

          9  closed for twenty months.  Just about twenty months.

         10    Is there any plan to reopen Park Row to normal

         11  traffic?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Not that

         13  I'm aware of at this moment.  But I should add, that

         14  my agency is not the agency that closed that street.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Has DOT issued a

         16  permit or an order for Park Row to be closed?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  No.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  You mentioned in

         19  your testimony that there are efforts to improve the

         20  communication and to alert the public about street

         21  closures and trying to achieve some level of

         22  transparency in this whole process.  Has any of that

         23  been done with regard to the Park Row closure?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Yes.  I

         25  mean, if you think, in terms of Lower Manhattan and
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          2  its entirety, probably more has been done, in terms

          3  of, on a number of levels, in terms of coordination

          4  between agencies and with the community in terms of

          5  construction and in terms of trying to communicate

          6  information to the public.  And I think lower

          7  Manhattan, Councilman, is well aware of the amount

          8  of activity happening down here and the number of

          9  streets that had to be closed for a long period of

         10  time is much larger than anything else we've seen

         11  elsewhere in the City.

         12                 We've gone to great lengths to really

         13  change how we do business to try to address that.

         14  We now have a lower Manhattan office.  We've

         15  received Federal funding to staff that office.  And

         16  the amount of involvement that we have in thinking

         17  through the impact of projects in Lower Manhattan

         18  is, has had to be much greater than elsewhere in the

         19  City.  Also, I think there's been, I think, more

         20  information about what's going on in terms of street

         21  closures, via the Lower Manhattan web site than

         22  elsewhere in the City.  I think that's had to happen

         23  just because of the level of activity down here.

         24                 I think we expect to see, we expect

         25  to see some more information that will be made
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          2  available, via that web site.  So that's in terms of

          3  lower Manhattan.  City- wide, there are also some

          4  projects we're working on that will soon make

          5  information about the permits we issue available,

          6  via the web site, for every community in the City.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Do the 170 thousand

          8  street closure permits have a serious effect on the

          9  ability of, the ability of traffic to move

         10  throughout the City?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:

         12  Absolutely. Absolutely, and again, that 170 thousand

         13  ranges from the small to the large.

         14                 When we talk about the closing of a

         15  street or part of a street, that refers to

         16  everything down to the closure of part of a

         17  sidewalk.  But of that 170,000 everyday, there are

         18  significant roadway closures that will impact

         19  traffic flow.  Again, every single day of the year

         20  there is going to be some degree of closure that's

         21  going to have an impact on mobility.  I mean, I

         22  think in an ideal world, if there were never any

         23  closures, traffic, never any construction, traffic

         24  would flow much, much, better than it does now.  But

         25  we can't -- we can't have that world, unfortunately.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Is it safe for us

          3  to assume that the Department of Transportation

          4  generally does not like to close streets off?  Even

          5  though sometimes it is necessary, but for the

          6  purpose of moving traffic along and for, for

          7  residence to gain access to their homes and for

          8  emergency services to have full access.  That it's

          9  always preferable to keep streets open.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:

         11  Absolutely.  When you, in this balancing act that we

         12  play, when we try to balance the interest of

         13  mobility with other interests, we always prefer,

         14  that as much of that roadway space, and sidewalk

         15  space, for pedestrians gets left in place.  So for

         16  instance, when there's no typical construction job,

         17  but, let's say that there's a utility that needs to

         18  get under the street, and asks us to take out two

         19  lanes of traffic, to do that work.  We will think

         20  through it, and ask the question, do they really

         21  need to take two lanes?  You know, we will try to

         22  say, well, we think you can do that work,

         23  sufficiently and safely, in one lane.  So again,

         24  it's always a balancing act.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Would the DOT
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          2  consider Park Row to be a, kind of a small side

          3  street or a major avenue?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  You

          5  know, obviously, there's a lot of activity on Park

          6  Row.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  There was a lot of

          8  activity.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Well, I

         10  mean, there's still, you know, there's still people

         11  who live there and it's clearly an important street.

         12

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So how many

         14  important streets have been closed down for 20

         15  months?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I think

         17  it's fair to say that Park Row is an unusual, an

         18  unusual situation.  Just to get back this, to the

         19  balancing equation that the City is always graveling

         20  with.  That equation has been made much more

         21  complicated since September 11th.  Particularly in

         22  the area of Lower Manhattan, where there have been

         23  security related closures.  There have been a number

         24  of them.  That makes that equation that we have to

         25  think through much, much, much harder.

                                                            27

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Would DOT like to

          3  see Park Row reopened?  For the purpose of moving

          4  traffic along.  It's a significant avenue where

          5  there is a great deal of activity.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  From

          7  that narrow prism of mobility, sure.  But we

          8  recognize, that there are always other interests at

          9  stake.  So, in the same way that there is, when

         10  you're thinking, when we're thinking about a

         11  construction project and we're balancing the

         12  importance of mobility with the importance of that

         13  construction project, let's say, for a building

         14  getting done as quickly as possible, without greatly

         15  increasing the cost for the person that's putting up

         16  the building.

         17                 In that same way, we have to

         18  recognize when there are issues of safety and

         19  security.  That, has to be part of the equation as

         20  well.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I fully understand

         22  it and I do understand that's outside the realm and

         23  jurisdiction of the Department of Transportation

         24  but, I don't have to sit here to convince you that,

         25  that access for emergency vehicles, such as
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          2  ambulances, is also a grave matter of public safety.

          3

          4                 I just have a couple of more

          5  questions and then I'll defer to my colleague.

          6                 We're not trying to create additional

          7  costs for the City to bear.  Certainly, we're not

          8  trying to require that the DOT Budget be increased

          9  by $10 million to do all the review that's necessary

         10  under a bill like this.  I think, my sense is that,

         11  the intent of this bill is not to address every

         12  small sidewalk closure or, even the closures of

         13  small side streets.  An you in fact, even indicated

         14  that, when it comes to larger thoroughfares, that

         15  the DOT generally prefers that not to have not have

         16  the entire street closed down but, maybe close down

         17  a lane at a time when as construction progresses.

         18                 So, this is something, we'll here

         19  from Council Member Gerson but, it's something, this

         20  is an area where I think we can work together, to

         21  try to come up with a bill that more directly

         22  addresses the problems that we're faced with here.

         23  And in particular, with regard to the reason why the

         24  Park Row area has been closed to traffic for such a

         25  long time, I think we can work on refining this bill
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          2  so that we can directly address that.

          3                 I do believe that DOT is one of the

          4  most transparent agencies.  And I think that there

          5  has been a severe lack of transparency with regard

          6  to the process that resulted in the closure of Park

          7  Row and its continued closure for, not only for so

          8  long, but also projected to be much, much, longer

          9  into the future.              At this time, I'd like

         10  to mention that Council Member Helen Sears from

         11  Queens has also joined us and want to ask if any

         12  Committee Members have questions?  Council Member

         13  Koppell.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Thank you

         15  Mr. Chairman. I'm a little bit confused here by the

         16  numbers.  If we limit ourselves only to complete

         17  closing of streets for more than 45 days, not

         18  closing one lane, not partial closing, complete

         19  closing of streets for more than 45 days.  How many

         20  of those instances occur each year?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I don't

         22  know off hand, but it's going to be significantly

         23  less than the 8,400.  The 8,400 refers to a universe

         24  of closing's that includes, closing's, in terms of

         25  the language of the bill.  So a street or a portion
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          2  thereof.  And obviously, the full closures would be

          3  much smaller, much smaller universe.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  So if the

          5  bill were limited to complete closures of the

          6  street, so that would be, it would be a significant

          7  impact, not merely congestion.  We would be talking

          8  about much less than 8,400.  Right?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Yes.

         10  I'm not sure. We'd have to go back and access what

         11  that number would be, but it would certainly be,

         12  certainly be, a much smaller number.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  In the last

         14  sentence, on page, the last paragraph on Page two

         15  you say, we estimate that the DOT's budget would

         16  need increase by $10 million dollars in order to

         17  fund the staff necessary to simply refer the annual

         18  average of all 8,400 submitted analyses.  I'm not

         19  sure, what do you mean by submitted analyses?  What

         20  do you mean by that?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  As we

         22  understand the bill.  For any project, the Community

         23  Board Council Member would be able to request this

         24  analysis.  Our assumption is, that in most cases you

         25  would want to do that, or the Community Board would
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          2  want to do that.  Certainly we'd need to be prepared

          3  to do so.                          COUNCIL MEMBER

          4  KOPPELL:  I don't understand, what do you mean by

          5  submitted analyses?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Sure.

          7  If you look at the language of the bill.  For each

          8  closure over 45 days, there is essentially two

          9  points, where, I don't think the word analysis is

         10  used in the bill, but that's basically what your,

         11  what your asking for.  Our understanding of the way

         12  this would work, again, most of the closures that

         13  happen throughout the City aren't necessarily a

         14  government agency that's doing a project.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  But

         16  Commissioner, is there a misuse of word here.  If

         17  you'd look with me at your testimony. I don't mean

         18  to be nit picky here but your talking about $10

         19  million dollars, so I want to understand what we're

         20  talking about? You say here that the necessary to

         21  simply review.  Did you mean prepare should that

         22  word be prepare?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  No.  No.

         24    In that case it's review.  Let me just describe

         25  and perhaps maybe we're misinterpreting the language
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          2  or the intent but, the way we believe this reads,

          3  for every project we would have to be prepared for

          4  an analysis to be done.  In the case of a project

          5  that's not being done by the Department of Design

          6  and Construction, or the Department of

          7  Transportation, being done by a private entity, or

          8  utility.  They would do that analysis and it would

          9  be our responsibility to make sure that analysis is

         10  complete.  And that's what we're referring there by

         11  review.

         12                 I mean at the end of the day it would

         13  be our Department's responsibility, based on the

         14  language in the bill, to make sure that analysis

         15  gets done.  But this would be the most likely

         16  mechanism that we'd use to make sure that happened.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  But where,

         18  where in the bill does it took about an analysis?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Sure.

         20  If you turn to page two of the Bill.  At the very

         21  beginning, the very top of that page, it references

         22  a reassessment request, and we would have to issue a

         23  reassessment report.  And it lists a few of the

         24  questions that, that report would have to get to.

         25  And then a little later on in that section it refers

                                                            33

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  to a review of the reassessment report. The

          3  Commissioner would have to generate a community

          4  impact finding, which gets it another series of

          5  questions.  So when we say analysis, we're referring

          6  to those two parts.

          7                 Now, at the end of the day, my

          8  Commissioner of our Department would be responsible

          9  for making sure that happens.  Our assumption is

         10  that for a City, if it's a City Agency that is doing

         11  work, that requires the closing of that street or

         12  part of a street, we would do, we would do the

         13  analysis.  So let's say it's the Department of

         14  Design and Construction project, Mr. Hrocken

         15  (phonetic) and his colleagues would be responsible

         16  for, or their contractor would be responsible for,

         17  answering these questions.  We would get that report

         18  and review it and make sure that it did what it's

         19  supposed to do.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  But it's

         21  only required if the Community Board or the Council

         22  Member requests it.  Right?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Correct.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  So, going

         25  back for a moment to your claim of $10 million

                                                            34

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  dollars, there are substantially less, we don't know

          3  how many, full street closings, assuming we limited

          4  that to 8,400.  All you would have to do with

          5  respect to such a closing is provide notice and

          6  you'd have to give the estimated date for reopening

          7  and the reasons for closure.  So the reasons for

          8  closure would, might be construction, or the reason

          9  might be that there needs to be a new excavation for

         10  pipes.  Whatever?  Just an explanation and an

         11  estimated date.  That's what you'd have to do. Only

         12  if the Council Member or the Community Board asks

         13  for a reassessment would you have to do this

         14  analysis.  And then, as you point out, in most cases

         15  you wouldn't be doing the analysis, someone else

         16  would do it and you'd just have to review it.  And

         17  for that, you say you'd need $10 million dollars?  I

         18  just find that hard to believe.  I mean, you don't

         19  need to answer it, it just doesn't make sense to me.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very much

         21  and we have a question from Council Member Sears.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you Mr.

         23  Chair.  If we can just stay with a process for a

         24  moment, which is the Community Boards because these

         25  are familiar of how this works.  The Community
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          2  Boards receive notification of when there is any

          3  project, any street that's going to close down.

          4  That's what I'm asking.  Is that the process?

          5  Because the Agencies supposedly have a working

          6  relationship with the Community Boards, and with

          7  that relationship, whenever there is the starting of

          8  a ULURP process, when there is a closing of a

          9  street, and so on.  The Community Boards receive

         10  notification of that.  Is that a process that your

         11  Agency goes through?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I guess

         13  we need to differentiate between the different types

         14  of projects.  But using my Agency as an example.

         15  For our projects that we do, not just as the

         16  oversight agency but when we're the agency

         17  responsible for construction.  When we do bridge

         18  projects?  We certainly, at the very beginning of

         19  that process, these are often big projects, we would

         20  go to the Community Board.

         21                 Similarly, the Department of Design

         22  and Construction when they begin one of their big

         23  roadway projects they would go to the Community

         24  Board.

         25                 For smaller projects, say a milling

                                                            36

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  and paving job, that the Department of

          3  Transportation is doing, we would give the Community

          4  Board notice, certainly a few weeks ahead of time,

          5  that we would be coming into their community and we

          6  would point out the streets that we'd be working on.

          7    So I think the process will vary depending upon

          8  the type of work that's happening.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Okay.  And

         10  when that happens does the Community Boards get back

         11  to you, perhaps if there are other questions they

         12  need to ask about those specific things.  Or you

         13  notify them and the Community Board just does what

         14  it has to do.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I don't

         16  think there are that many Community Boards like

         17  that.  I think part of the, as you will note, the

         18  point of the Community Boards is to reflect the need

         19  of their constituents.  So for our, the large

         20  projects that we undertake and the large projects

         21  that the Department of Design and Construction

         22  undertakes, there's a lot of give and take.

         23  Particularly in the beginning, at the early stages,

         24  the design stages of these projects.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Okay.  And is
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          2  it an automatic procedure to notify the local

          3  Councilman?  Because we are talking about the City's

          4  Services, which is in the jurisdiction of the

          5  Council Members.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:

          7  Absolutely.  I think, I think for these, these types

          8  of projects, the large construction projects that

          9  have significant community impact, absolutely.  And

         10  similarly when we, as we share design plans, let's

         11  say, for one of our bridge projects with the

         12  Community Board, we would be sharing them with the

         13  Council Members as well.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  So if another

         15  Agency closes a street indefinitely, do they notify

         16  you that they're doing it and for approximately how

         17  long their going to do it and why?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Any

         19  construction related closure, and most of the

         20  closures that happen in the City are construction

         21  related in a general sense.  It's either

         22  construction of a building next to a street.  Or the

         23  placement of a new building next to a street.  Or

         24  the construction of the street itself.  Or work that

         25  has to happen under the streets.  Repair of utility
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          2  lines or cable lines.  So any thing that's

          3  construction related, that entity that's responsible

          4  for it, whether it's a City Agency or whether it's a

          5  Utility or whether its a private developer, they

          6  have to, they have to come to us for a permit.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  For a permit.

          8  All right. And then at that point, because you know,

          9  the big problem is that Community Boards are very

         10  limited.  They really do not have access to

         11  distribute a lot of information.  It's not where

         12  they're short of staff, they're basically very

         13  limited.

         14                 The Council Members who absolutely

         15  have a working relationship with the Agencies, it

         16  would seem, recognizing the very rare situation of

         17  the area that's talking about now.  The fact is,

         18  have the Police and has your Agency had meetings

         19  with the Councilman in that area?  Because it

         20  obviously has affected everything.

         21                 I know that when the BQE and the

         22  State DOT are doing this mammoth project on the BQE,

         23  mammoth.  To me it's an engineering phenomenon.  I

         24  get reports every week.  There are streets that are

         25  closed down in my district and they're going to be
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          2  for some time and they create traffic havoc that is

          3  incredible. And you know the area extremely well.

          4  It's very unique throughout the City.

          5                 The fact is that, I'm informed about

          6  that.  And then it's up to me, and I do that.  I

          7  keep my constituents informed of what's going on

          8  because it has been a major invasion.

          9  Understandably.  And it means a shifting of gears by

         10  the residents. It means a shifting of gears of

         11  everything in play.  But they know, and they know

         12  how long it's going to be.  If the area in question

         13  has been shut down and it's not due to safety at

         14  this point, maybe it's a question of convenience for

         15  cars because there are so many areas there that have

         16  lost parking spaces.  That needs to really be looked

         17  at, it needs to be looked at by your Agency because

         18  the inconvenience to those who are working there,

         19  but also to the residences when we are asking people

         20  to commit to the areas and stay there, and we're

         21  looking to, out of necessity to rebuild that,      I

         22  would think your Agency would work very closely with

         23  the Councilman in that area.  And you know, it

         24  works.  Because as long as people understand what's

         25  going on, it works.  I mean, I've, we've had to
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          2  soothe a lot of ruffled feathers with that BQE

          3  construction.  But, everybody understands and

          4  everybody's making adjustments.

          5                 And I think that you and the Police

          6  Department should coordinate so that there's better

          7  communication.  You can do that.  You really can,

          8  because you're very tuned to the Communities and the

          9  DOT.  It might be a little more, but you know in the

         10  long run I think it saves a lot more.  And maybe

         11  that's something you might think about.  That's

         12  something I think you need to work out with

         13  Councilman Gerson.  But, is that something that you

         14  would be able to do?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I think

         16  in a general sense in Lower Manhattan, and I

         17  mentioned this earlier, our Lower Manhattan office,

         18  and again it's a very unusual office there's not

         19  another office like it anywhere in the City, where

         20  we have staff people that have been working very

         21  closely, as the Councilman knows, and with Community

         22  Board One and Community Board Two and other groups

         23  and residences and businesses throughout the lower

         24  Manhattan area, very, very closely.

         25                 I think the dialogue down here has
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          2  been exceptionally unusual in how active we've been.

          3    And frankly, it's extremely difficult in lower

          4  Manhattan.  We're dealing with an unprecedented

          5  number of closing's.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  I think we all

          7  understand that.  We understand that. But, I think

          8  what's also is a major consideration, is how do the

          9  residents of any area, wherein you have this major

         10  problem, what do they have to do to adjust?  What

         11  kind of assistance do they need?  That's the real

         12  issue.  Which leads to one other question, Mr.

         13  Chairman.

         14                 Of the major, major projects that you

         15  get notice of, not all 170,000 or 8,700 are major,

         16  major projects.               There are time

         17  schedules for all of them because I know they can

         18  happen that you get, suddenly it's released from the

         19  Federal Government and State, and I understand that.

         20    The major projects close streets and they last for

         21  a long time.  What is your process for those

         22  projects, not for every permit, I mean let's just

         23  weed that aside and let's just deal with the very

         24  major ones that are closing streets which requires

         25  huge shifting.  What is your process in terms of
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          2  knowing when that's happening?  How long it's going

          3  to be?  And how do you communicate that to the local

          4  area? Or the local Officials?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Again

          6  for these larger projects that dialogue starts well

          7  before the work actually happens.  We spend a lot of

          8  time thinking about how traffic's going to be

          9  impacted.  We'll do traffic counts.  We'll collect

         10  data and think about, think carefully about, how

         11  traffic will need to be rerouted.  And again, we'll

         12  work with the entity to see if there's a way that

         13  they can speed up their work.  But, if the work is

         14  going to last for a year we'll think it through,

         15  what mechanisms need to be put in place so that the

         16  people who need access in that community can get

         17  where they're going.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Okay.  If I

         19  can interrupt. What isn't working that there has

         20  been a need to pursue such a bill?  Something's not

         21  working or there wouldn't be proposed legislature

         22  here.  So in that process, something's not working

         23  and as a result, this is what's being prompted.  And

         24  I have great respect for the Agency and your

         25  wonderful to work with, the fact is, there is a gap
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          2  somewhere, that proposed legislation is looking to

          3  fill.  So maybe you can identify where it is, that

          4  such a proposal is being initiated, which is to

          5  correct, fill that gap, or to correct the failing in

          6  the process.  Could you do that?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Sure.

          8  Well, I'm not sure if the Department is necessarily

          9  in a position to address the need for our

         10  legislation but I think that clearly, --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  But you can

         12  address where weaknesses are?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  In within

         15  their own procedures and processes.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Well, I

         17  think let's be clear.  The situation that's been

         18  raised by Councilman Gerson is not the typical

         19  closure that falls into the 170,000 that we do every

         20  year.  It's not one of those 170,000, it's a

         21  different kind of situation and I think it's very

         22  typical.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  I know, I

         24  know.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH.  I think
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          2  it's very typical.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  All right.

          4  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you Council

          6  Member Sears. And we have questions from Council

          7  Member Alan Gerson.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Thank you

          9  Chair Liu.  Thank you Council Member Sears.  Our

         10  community truly appreciates your interest in the

         11  commitment to this issue and I want to extend the

         12  same note to Council Member Koppell.

         13                 Let me just briefly preface my

         14  remarks by recognizing the outstanding work that the

         15  Department of Transportation and DDC, the Department

         16  of Design and Construction has done, continues to do

         17  in so many places in Lower Manhattan, including your

         18  outstanding response in so many respects to, to

         19  9/11.  And that's why I'm so frustrated, and this is

         20  not necessarily directed to DOT, but directed to the

         21  City overall, the Administration overall.  I'm so

         22  frustrated by the lack of the same level of

         23  responsiveness and professionalism when it comes to

         24  Park Row.

         25                 That's why we're at the point where
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          2  we're considering legislation.  And there are

          3  countless instances in our legal system where we do

          4  have relief for legislation and law to make sure

          5  that nothing slips through the cracks.  To deal with

          6  the ten percent or even the one percent or even less

          7  than that or more than that which is not properly

          8  being redressed.  In other words, to make sure that

          9  we deal uniformly in a fair and equitable and

         10  responsive way with all of our situations.  In this

         11  case, with all of our streets.

         12                 While Park Row is unique, my

         13  suspicion is the lack of the response required in

         14  Park Row might happen elsewhere, might have happened

         15  elsewhere, and could happen elsewhere.  And that is

         16  why to guard, to want to deal with the Park Row

         17  situation and then to guard against the exceptional

         18  situations elsewhere.  You know, after hearing your

         19  testimony I still feel committed to the need for

         20  some legislation.  This being the first hearing I

         21  appreciate the input and I think, one of the

         22  purposes of the hearing is to tweak and fine tune a

         23  proposed legislation to see if we can come up with

         24  common ground or with a better bill.  So I want to

         25  pursue my questioning in that vein.
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          2                 Just picking up on some of the points

          3  raised by my colleagues.  That 8,400 universe of

          4  street closures.  How many of those street closures

          5  are non- permitted street closures?  Or in other

          6  words, how many of those closures, maybe let's back

          7  up again. How many of those closures of that 8,400

          8  are for reasons other than, let me back up, let me

          9  rephrase it again.  How many of those closures did

         10  not have a construction permit?  Let's start there.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:

         12  Actually, before I answer that, let me just be very

         13  clear about what the 8,400 is, just so there's no

         14  confusion.  The 8,400 refers to projects.  Those are

         15  projects that last, in some way, shape or form, more

         16  than 45 days.  Some of those projects could have a

         17  number of permits. Particularly if you think about a

         18  large project that goes over a couple of streets may

         19  involve.  So just to be clear what that is.        COUNCIL

         20  MEMBER GERSON:  How many have no permits what- so-

         21  ever?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  None of

         23  them.  We're only talking about projects that

         24  receive permits from the Department of

         25  Transportation.  So that's what that 8,400 is.
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          2  Those are projects that are going to last 45 days or

          3  longer that receive one or more permits from the

          4  Department of Transportation.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Did your

          6  Department issue a permit for the closure of Park

          7  Row.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  No.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  So if we were

         10  to narrow the universe.  I'm not suggesting this,

         11  I'm now talking hypothetically and brainstorming.

         12  If we were to narrow the universe of the bill to

         13  deal with closures of streets without issuance of

         14  permits by the Department of Transportation than

         15  that would dwindle the number quite considerably.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Of the 8,400,

         18  which you do issue permits for, how many are permits

         19  for 24 hours, seven day a week, full, complete, all

         20  lane closures?  Roughly?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  It would

         22  be much, much smaller than that.  I don't have,

         23  don't have the answer to that question.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Could you get

         25  us that information?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:

          3  Absolutely.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Okay.  I

          5  would appreciate that. But significantly less, it's

          6  fair to say.  Okay.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Again, of

          8  those 8,400, you use the term, small streets, large

          9  streets, using your terminology, how many or what

         10  percentage would you roughly say fall within the

         11  category of large streets?  On the order of a Park

         12  Row for example.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I'm just

         14   --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  And if you

         16  want to get back to me with it.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Yes,

         18  we'll get back to you with the number.  Just off the

         19  top of my head, you know, probably 50 percent are

         20  larger streets, 50 percent are smaller streets.  But

         21  we'd have to get back to you with that number.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  All right.

         23  But if we limited the bill, just to review this

         24  part, this phase of my question, if we limited the

         25  bill to streets, non- permitted street closures that
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          2  would drastically reduce the number of streets that

          3  are subject to the bill.  If we limited the bill to

          4  permitted, but 24 hours, seven day a week, non- stop

          5  full lane closures, that would significantly reduce

          6  the bill and you'll get back to us with some

          7  information on that.  And if we limited the bill to

          8  permitted large street closures, that would probably

          9  cut back 50 percent. Presumably even more, if it was

         10  the 24 hours, seven day a week. But then again,

         11  you'll get back to us with some rough information

         12  about the large streets.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:

         14  Absolutely.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Now, let me

         16  ask you, on Park Row, what type of, -- we'll use the

         17  wonderful term that we've arrived at, analysis, or

         18  study was done to assure that there was no

         19  interruption in ambulance access to Chatham Green or

         20  Chatham Towers or the surrounding community as a

         21  result of the closure?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  You know

         23  again, as this Agency, the Department of

         24  Transportation, was not the entity that closed the

         25  street.  We didn't issue a permit for that.  So
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          2  we're not the Agency to answer that question.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  So you don't

          4  know if one was done or not.  You just don't have

          5  the information.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Correct.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  And I take

          8  it, I take it you don't have any analysis or study

          9  on the impact on small businesses in the community

         10  as a result of the protracted closure of Park Row.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I

         12  certainly don't have that.  I can get back to you if

         13  there's anybody in my Department that does.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Okay.  You

         15  don't know if any such analysis was done.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I'm not

         17  sure.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Okay.  How

         19  about, do you have any traffic counts or traffic

         20  studies to indicate the increase in traffic and

         21  traffic congestion of other nearby streets as a

         22  result of the closure of Park Row.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I know

         24  that the staff in our Lower Manhattan office

         25  certainly has thought about that.  As they think
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          2  about all the streets in Lower Manhattan and what

          3  the impact is and everything that happens.  We don't

          4  have traffic counts with us, I'd have to go back and

          5  see if that information exists.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  I assure you.

          7    Everyone in this room has thought about that.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I can

          9  imagine.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  In one way or

         11  another.  You mentioned that quite frequently your

         12  Department does do traffic counts.  Do you know if

         13  such a count was done?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I'm not

         15  sure.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Could you let

         17  us know?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:

         19  Absolutely.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  And finally,

         21  and this would be, do you have any information as to

         22  how Park Row has impacted an access to public bus

         23  transportation, MTAT, Public Bus Transportation, and

         24  also access to Access- A- Ride to those people who

         25  utilize Access- A- Ride.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I know

          3  in terms of the first part, in terms of bus

          4  mobility, it's certainly been impacted. There are

          5  buses previously --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  With all due

          7  respect, we know that.  But in terms of the need to

          8  move stops or to make up for what has been impacted.

          9    Has anyone studied or looked into that?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I

         11  believe our Lower Manhattan office has been involved

         12  in terms of all the bus routes in Lower Manhattan

         13  and how they've been impacted by all the different,

         14  different changes.  I'm not sure specifically,

         15  what's been done for the buses that used to use Park

         16  Row.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  What about

         18  Access- A- Ride?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I'm not

         20  sure.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Okay.  You

         22  know what.  Not only are you not sure, but I'm not

         23  sure, and I don't think anyone in the community is

         24  sure, because we haven't heard of any studies to

         25  protect ambulance accessibility, to mitigate
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          2  economic impact, to mitigate the upsurge of traffic

          3  congestion that we've seen, and to assure access to

          4  public transportation and Access- A- Ride.  So

          5  where, here we have a major artery closed for up to

          6  20 months and no one knows, sitting here today, if

          7  any of this has been done, and my suspicion is most

          8  of it has not been done, and that goes back to why

          9  we perhaps need legislation.  Not necessarily

         10  directed at your Department, but legislation to

         11  assure that, if there is going to be such a

         12  protractive closure, this type of basic impact study

         13  or analysis is done.  It's fine that people are

         14  thinking about it, but we need, I mean clearly you

         15  would agree to bare minimum, the community has the

         16  right to assure that its ambulances can reach people

         17  in need.  That's not unreasonable, is it?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  No.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Well, let me

         20  just say, this finally on the $10 million point, and

         21  clearly if we reduce the scope of streets covered,

         22  that would proportionally reduce what ever cost, you

         23  know, there's associated with the type of analysis.

         24  What strikes me, is that in your testimony you seem

         25  to indicate that you do this balancing act.  You
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          2  indicate that you undertake, you do reviews, as back

          3  and forth in the community, mechanisms are put in

          4  place, and according to your testimony the

          5  Department does, if I hear your testimony right,

          6  most of what we're asking be done anyway.

          7                 And so therefore, you're already

          8  occurring the expense.  So what we're doing is

          9  asking, if this bill just assures that you keep

         10  doing what your doing, and in the event of other

         11  Agencies close the street that the same type of

         12  thing be done, there really should not be that much

         13  of an expense at all.  Isn't that correct?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Well,

         15  you know, I think that we do the kind of outreach

         16  and the kind of analysis that's reflected here.  I

         17  think the extent of what your asking for in the bill

         18  is more than necessarily happens right now.  If you

         19  think of the entire universe of work that happens

         20  for all projects that involve getting permits.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  What is it

         22  that we're asking for that you do not do?  Let's put

         23  it that way.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Again,

         25  most of the permits we issue are for work that's
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          2  done by a non- governmental entity.  By a project

          3  developer or a utility.  Most of the projects, you

          4  know there's always, every time you do work on or

          5  next to the streets there's going to be some impact.

          6    But most of them, as you've said, don't involve

          7  full closures.  The way the bill reads now, it would

          8  apply to everything.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Let's even

         10  take a hypothetical case of a partial closure.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Sure.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Didn't you

         13  say that you think about the impact of the partial

         14  closure on traffic, and the impact on emergency

         15  services?  Don't you do that?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:

         17  Absolutely, absolutely.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  So what are

         19  we asking for that you don't do?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I think

         21  the extent of the questions that are being asked.

         22  And again, the initial that, as you call,

         23  reassessment or analysis would be done by the entity

         24  doing that work.  The extent at what your asking

         25  for, I think, is more than what probably happens
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          2  now.  And so for let's say, a building that's going

          3  up or work that is being done a building for that

          4  entity that is putting it up.  They would have to in

          5  order to answer these specific questions they would

          6  have to do more than they're doing now.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  I mean, it

          8  seems to me, just to take the Economic 1, the first

          9  one I happen to look at, Economic Impact on

         10  Business.  If it's a minor, partial, that we ask to

         11  be looked into and considered in the businesses in

         12  the area.  If it's your standard run- of- the- mill

         13  type of street or building construction, then

         14  probably the answer is, ready from a quick look,

         15  there is no economic impact, or there is no

         16  significant economic impact.  And if you, then you

         17  move on.

         18                 If it is a more significant process,

         19  it seems to me, as you said yourself in the

         20  balancing act, you would want to think about whether

         21  or not there is an impact, and what it is.  And all

         22  we're asking is that you communicate that to the

         23  Community.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER OCKEN:

         25  Councilman, I'm Rich Ocken, Deputy Commissioner from

                                                            57

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  DDC.  And let me see if I can give you an example

          3  that might explain this.

          4                 We are still in the process actually

          5  of a major project in Bay Ridge.  About 30 blocks of

          6  reconstruction of Fifth Avenue from 65th Street all

          7  the way down to, I think, 98th Street.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Even though I

          9  live in and represent Lower Manhattan, I'm familiar

         10  with Bay Ridge.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER OCKEN: Well I'm

         12  just using it as an example.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Sure.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER OCKEN:  I think

         15  it's a good example on terms of what your getting

         16  at.  In order to do that project we had to make

         17  Fifth Avenue, one way.  It was a two way street, we

         18  had to make it one way.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  It's common.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER OCKEN:  We did

         21  that in ten block sections.  Last year, we did two

         22  of the three sections and this year we're finishing

         23  the third section.  We extensively worked with the

         24  community and the businesses, both the Community

         25  Board, the elected Officials, the Business
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          2  Community.  There's a local development corporation,

          3  we had weekly meetings with them.  So, I think

          4  everyone was well informed and I'll just say that we

          5  got a lot of acclaim after the project.  People felt

          6  that it went very well.

          7                 Now accessing the economic impact, to

          8  me, I don't know how many businesses there are on

          9  Fifth Avenue from 65th to 100th Street, but for me

         10  to say, in any sense, that I can assess the economic

         11  impact, the data that I would have to get from each

         12  store front on Fifth Avenue.  First of all, I don't

         13  know that they would give it to me even if they,

         14  even if we asked for it.  And then, what would we

         15  have to compare the business activity, presumably

         16  that they were doing during the project to the

         17  business activity what they might have done before

         18  the project, to try to understand how that changed

         19  versus what the overall economic conditions were.

         20                 I mean, to do that, in any realistic

         21  way, I think would be a tremendous undertaking.  It

         22  would probably take longer to do that actually.  And

         23  I don't mean this in any disrespect, but it would

         24  take longer to do that analysis than it would take

         25  to actually to do the project.
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          2                 Similarly, when you talk about

          3  traffic.  We made Fifth Avenue one- way.  We had a

          4  sense of what the traffic counts were.  We knew that

          5  we were going to detour traffic onto Fourth Avenue

          6  and Sixth Avenue.  We worked with Joe's office to

          7  understand whether or not there would be a capacity

          8  to absorb that traffic. But again, to really

          9  understand it, to go and do what traffic engineers

         10  call an origin and destination study, which means go

         11  to every car that's going on Fifth Avenue, give them

         12  a survey card, a post card to fill out, where are

         13  you going?, where are you heading from?, what are

         14  your traffic patterns?, so that we could really

         15  model traffic in that entire area, also would be an

         16  astronomical, a tremendous cost, that we don't do.

         17                 So what we do, is we say, we have

         18  businesses.  We know that they have to have access.

         19  We talk with them.  We explain what we're going to

         20  do.  We try to work out work- hours that we can

         21  work.  We try to explain to them detours and we make

         22  provisions. But to do a detailed analysis of what we

         23  interrupt anyway, the bill is providing I think,

         24  would probably be a lot more than what's ordered.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  And I'll
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          2  conclude on this note.  If you had done on Park Row

          3  what you just described you did in Fifth Avenue in

          4  Bay Ridge, and I applaud you for doing that there,

          5  then I don't think we'd be here today.  Because I

          6  assure you that type of interaction has, 20 months

          7  after closure, has not happened.  But, no where in

          8  this bill, do we go into detail and maybe we need to

          9  clarify this a little bit further, no where in this

         10  bill do we go into the detail of what would be

         11  required to do the assessment.  I think that is what

         12  we have the Department to do.           What the

         13  bill mandates, intends to mandate, is that there be

         14  thoughtful consideration and communication to the

         15  areas that you just outlined.  I'm quite confident,

         16  that if you interacted with the business

         17  communities, you just testified you did and I if I

         18  believe you did, that you must have discussed in

         19  those conversations, the economic impact on the

         20  shopping and the retail along Fifth Avenue in Bay

         21  Ridge.  I'm quite confident it came up.

         22                 And if you discussed with the

         23  Community Boards the changing of the street one way,

         24  which is still different from a total closure that

         25  we have, but if you discussed the one way change,
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          2  I'm quite confident you discussed and gave thought

          3  to the impact on traffic in the neighboring, in the

          4  parallel Avenues over there.

          5                 So what we're asking, and that

          6  probably would have passed mustard under the bill

          7  and certainly under the intent of the bill, cause

          8  again as Council Member Koppell said, this whole

          9  process kicks in only if there's a request by the

         10  Community or the Community Board.  So maybe, taking

         11  your testimony, maybe we need to clarify some of the

         12  points here.  But again, I go back to where I

         13  started, it sounds like in most cases, your doing it

         14  anyway.  This bill is to design, to assure a

         15  universality of practice across the City in all

         16  situations.  And so really, putting aside the fact

         17  that we may narrow the universe of streets and

         18  street situations that we're dealing with, really it

         19  sounds like it would not be anywhere near $10

         20  million dollars and the little bit more that we're

         21  talking about would just be to assure, that what you

         22  just described in Bay Ridge goes on all over, and

         23  probably that type of little investment at the

         24  beginning of a process will save money at the end of

         25  the process.  Because if we do an impact, or if we
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          2  give thought to an impact, than our economy will be

          3  better off and thus our tax rolls will be better

          4  off, in addition to the basic assurance of health

          5  and safety to residents.

          6                 So I'm going to take your testimony,

          7  I'm sure we'll consider need for clarification.  But

          8  I urge you in turn to think of the points we've, my

          9  colleagues and myself have made, and hopefully some,

         10  or all of you, will stay to hear from the Community

         11  and maybe change.  Instead of working against us on

         12  this bill, maybe we can work cooperatively to come

         13  up with a bill that deals with legitimate needs to

         14  the Community and the legitimate concerns of the

         15  Department.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you Council

         17  Member Gerson. I have a few follow- up items and so

         18  I will just keep you gentlemen for a few more

         19  minutes.  But I wanted to alert the next panel to

         20  prepare to testify.  That would be Susan Stetzer

         21  from Community Board 3.  Betty Lee Sung from Chatham

         22  Green and Paul Lee from 32 Mott.

         23                 I think its become clear from your

         24  testimony that with regard to the Park Row

         25  situation, which is really the impetuous behind this
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          2  bill, and I think rightfully so.  I think it's

          3  become clear that neither of your Agency's, neither

          4  the DOT, Department of Transportation or the

          5  Department of Design and Construction actually have

          6  a great deal to do with the long standing and

          7  projected long term closure of Park Row.

          8                 But there are a few things that I

          9  think you can help with.  And, I think that if it

         10  has not been done so already, I would request that

         11  the DOT conduct a study of an analysis of the

         12  redirection of traffic in that area of Lower

         13  Manhattan where the traffic burden has been shifted

         14  to, instead of vehicles having access to Park Row

         15  and those other closed streets?  Where has that

         16  additional traffic gone?  Or has some of that

         17  traffic completely disappeared?  Which generally

         18  translates to lost economic activity.             Another

         19  thing that I would ask you to examine is the number

         20  of lost parking spaces that were previously

         21  available to local residents.  Is that something

         22  that can be achieved?  That kind of study?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: I imagine

         24  it can.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  And then
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          2  finally, even if the closure of Park Row is not the

          3  design, so to speak, of your Agency, there are

          4  things that I believe the DOT can examine to

          5  mitigate the very disturbing impacts on the local

          6  residents.  For example, access or how can we

          7  provide access to local residents with regard to

          8  their vehicles being able to be driven up to their

          9  buildings.  I mean, I think that's been one area of

         10  improvement that we can seek, even with the

         11  continued closing of Park Row.

         12                 Another thing we should examine is,

         13  what happens if an emergency vehicle does need to

         14  access those buildings and to get to the residences

         15  in that neighborhood.  I think those are areas that,

         16  even while Park Row is closed and we hope that it

         17  won't be for much longer, but even while it is

         18  closed, that the DOT could make these suggestions

         19  and recommendations to mitigate the erroneous impact

         20  on the local residents.  Can we do that?  Because

         21  that, a lot of that is the impetus behind Intro 465-

         22  A.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Again,

         24  I'm sure our Lower Manhattan office has spent time

         25  thinking about these issues and we'll go back to
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          2  them and talk to them about what they've done and

          3  what they can do.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Well has any of

          5  that been communicated to Council Member Gerson and

          6  the local Community Board and members of the

          7  Community?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Whatever

          9  we, whatever we thought through, whatever data we

         10  have, we'll share and we'll think through what else

         11  and talk about what else needs to be done.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  The issue of, the

         13  fact that this major street has been closed for --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Mr. Chair, I

         15  just want to hear a more on point of response to

         16  Council Member Liu's question. To the extent of

         17  these requests have not been, the studies that Chair

         18  Liu has requested, have not already been done.  Can

         19  you think of any reason why they can not be done?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  No.  I

         21  think it sounds like a reasonable request.  But

         22  again, I would need to go back and talk with the

         23  folks in our Agency who have been, again spending

         24  time working on these issues and talk to them about

         25  it.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  No one wants

          3  to reinvent the wheel.  So, we certainly want

          4  whatever information you have within the Department.

          5    But do we hear a commitment that if, what has not

          6  been done will be done?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Yes.  In

          8  the sense that we're -- our Lower Manhattan office,

          9  this is part of what they're here to do.  They're

         10  happy to work with the Councilman in the Community

         11  in terms of trying to think through these questions.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Glad to hear

         13  the yes.  Thank you Chair for the interruption.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  That's okay.  We

         15  have been joined by Council Member Joe Addabbo from

         16  Queens who stepped out for a second.

         17                 I think we do need to have those

         18  studies.  So I would ask that you direct your Lower

         19  Manhattan division to conduct a study, studies with

         20  regard to the loss of parking spaces, where the

         21  traffic has been shifted to, and what measures can

         22  be taken to mitigate the impact on the local

         23  residents with regard to, access to their buildings

         24  and, giving them access back to their vehicles and,

         25  the access for emergency services, especially
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          2  ambulances.

          3                 At some point, a street becomes

          4  closed for so long that people don't even think of

          5  it as a street any more.  Is there any consideration

          6  in the Department or has the Department heard from

          7  any other Agency in the City that there is a an

          8  intent to de map the street.  Legally or de facto?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Not that

         10  I'm aware of.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Good.  Because we

         12  do need that street back.  And, our goal is to

         13  reopen it as quickly as possible.            Finally

         14  , let me just conclude by saying that this

         15  legislation again is, on the heels of a great deal

         16  of effort from this Community that has been severely

         17  devastated.  Not only by the attacks of September

         18  11th but, by the continued closing, even 21 months.

         19  I finally counted it, it's 21 months after the

         20  horrific event.  It's unclear to the residents why

         21  Park Row needs to continue to be closed.  So we need

         22  to do what we can to mitigate the impasse for them.

         23  They have even filed lawsuits to get this street

         24  reopened.  So, I think as a City, we can do more to

         25  try to help these residents because, I think at this
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          2  point, 21 months after the event clearly some

          3  positive motion needs to be made forward.

          4                 Thank you very much Deputy

          5  Commissioners for joining us and I'd like to now

          6  invite the next panel, Susan Stetzer, Betty Lee

          7  Sung, and Paul Lee.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Mr. Chair, as

          9  these next witnesses take their seats I just want to

         10  make a very brief point, if I may.

         11  .              CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Please.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you.

         13  That is, while the testimony -- by the way, I would

         14  hope that someone from DOT would remain to hear from

         15  the Community.  But, let me just say, in addition,

         16  that while we focused on mitigation and analysis,

         17  the goal is, as you pointed out Mr. Chair, remains

         18  reopening Park Row.           Unfortunately, I think

         19  that discussion needs to happen in the presence of

         20  the Police Department.  While they were invited they

         21  have not -- they are not in attendance here and we

         22  have had preliminary meetings with them.  But I

         23  think, we certainly Mr. Chair, need to follow- up

         24  with a direct interaction and dialogue with the

         25  Police Department on the issue and on the goal of re
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          2  opening Park Row.  We need mitigation immediately

          3  but, we need Park Row to be opened as soon as

          4  possible.  Thank you Mr. Chair.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you Council

          6  Member Gerson. Ms. Stetzer, thank you for joining us

          7  this morning.

          8                 MS. STETZER:  Thank you for having

          9  the hearing.

         10                 My name is Susan Stetzer and I'm a

         11  Member of Community Board 3 and a Chair of the Pubic

         12  Safety Committee, which is a joint committee with

         13  Transportation.  The issues affected by the proposed

         14  Intro 465- A are issues that affect both of these

         15  committees.

         16                 The Transportation Chair

         17  unfortunately could not attend but our joint

         18  committees have been extremely concerned about the

         19  Park Row closing and its negative impact on the

         20  community. We've been working very hard with the

         21  community on the issue and we consider this a

         22  priority.

         23                 I can not testify directly on the

         24  legislation being voted on because the Community

         25  Board has not voted on this yet. But I can testify
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          2  on the impacts of closing of Park Row.  We held a

          3  public hearing to investigate the impacts and we

          4  have also voted on a resolution regarding the street

          5  closing which is attached to my testimony.  This

          6  resolution, which was passed unanimously, stated

          7  that the Community Board found it unacceptable that

          8  the street remain closed and proposed several

          9  measures to remedy the lack of community

         10  participation and the lack of mitigation.  These

         11  included a community advisory board, a request for

         12  the NYPD to document access policies in secure areas

         13  with regard to emergency service vehicles, a study

         14  of the effects of security procedures and mitigation

         15  of impacts on residents and businesses and inclusion

         16  of representatives of community residents, local

         17  businesses, and the Community Board to be included

         18  in all meetings regarding the closure of the street,

         19  along with elected officials, administration, and

         20  City agencies.

         21                 The Community Board has been looking

         22  forward to being able to vote on a resolution

         23  regarding this legislation.  We will do so in July.

         24                 The Community Board has been

         25  concerned with the effects on the community of
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          2  closing Park Row and also very concerned with the

          3  past process or lack of process in which this was

          4  done.  The street was closed in name of security and

          5  ostensibly to protect citizens but also without any

          6  concern for the very people that were supposedly

          7  being protected.  Proposed Intro 465- A addresses

          8  these very issues of concern.

          9                 We all agree that City agencies must

         10  have the ability to close a street quickly to

         11  protect people in a variety of emergencies.

         12  However, a community deserves to know the reasons

         13  for the closure.  In the closing of Park Row, the

         14  NYPD and administration have given the vague reason

         15  of security.  Residents will give examples of

         16  inconsistent policies that actually compromise

         17  security.  The community also does not believe the

         18  street closing is warranted for security.  This has

         19  not only caused real hardships to residents and

         20  businesses, it has brought about a serious

         21  alienation of the community from the City

         22  administration and the NYPD.  There is also a

         23  perception that the disregard with which the

         24  community has been treated is a result of racism.

         25  In its resolution, the Community Board cites that
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          2  the way in which the community has been treated has

          3  been perceived as racist.

          4                 There have been references by the

          5  community that if Park Avenue had been closed

          6  instead of Park Row, a closure that affects many

          7  people of more moderate and lower income families,

          8  Asians, immigrants and their families and very small

          9  businesses, particularly in Chinatown, the community

         10  would have been treated very differently.

         11                 All of the elected officials

         12  representing the community agree that the

         13  administration and the NYPD must consider the impact

         14  on the community.  To do so, the community must be

         15  included in a discussion of the impacts and possible

         16  mitigation. The administration and the NYPD,

         17  however, have refused to speak to the community.

         18  They have formed a Task Force, but only elected

         19  officials and City agencies are allowed to

         20  participate.

         21                 The exclusion of the community is

         22  completely unacceptable, and does not allow for a

         23  possibility of true findings of impacts.  Community

         24  residents, businesses, Community Board

         25  representatives, service providers, such as local
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          2  hospitals, must be included in a Task Force that

          3  will determine their future.

          4                 The proposed Intro 465- A addresses

          5  community impacts regarding traffic flow,

          6  environmental effects, and actions to mitigate.  The

          7  Community Board has been addressing these issues and

          8  trying to work with City agencies.  Some have tried

          9  to be helpful and answer questions and we believe

         10  even asking these questions in public meetings have

         11  had some beneficial effects.  However, we have not

         12  had any real success in having the City address the

         13  problems caused by the Park Row closing.

         14                 And I would just like to add to my

         15  testimony.  I don't see where the proposed

         16  legislation has any real teeth as far as mitigation

         17  and making sure that this can happen.  And I also

         18  don't see any proposal for community input.  Thank

         19  you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  Also,

         21  at this point I would like to ask the next panel to

         22  prepare to testify after these three individuals

         23  have completed.  That would be Edward Lam, Shelly

         24  Estrin and Jeanie Chin.

         25                 Professor Sung?
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          2                 PROFESSOR SUNG:  My name is Betty Lee

          3  Sung.  I'm Professor Emeritus from City College of

          4  New York and presently Chair of the Asian American

          5  Asian Research Institute at the City University, but

          6  I speak primarily as a resident of Chatham Green.  I

          7  was not prepared as I didn't have any prepared

          8  statement but when I came in, I realized that I'd

          9  have to speak up, because we, the residents of

         10  Chatham Green, have been so inconvenienced.

         11                 Let me give you a few examples.  Just

         12  this past week I had an air conditioner delivered

         13  and the truck could not come into Park Row.  So he

         14  had to go to a side street, way in the back, and

         15  then when he brought the air conditioner up, I said

         16  did you bring this up all by yourself?  He said no,

         17  my partner had to stay in the truck because we can't

         18  stand down there.  He had to lug that thing all up

         19  by himself, to install it all by himself.  Otherwise

         20  he would have had help.

         21                 I could give you many, many examples

         22  but another one is, when my husband and I came back

         23  from a trip to the West, we could not come into Park

         24  Row.  So we could only stay outside at Katherine

         25  Street and Madison and we had two pieces of luggage.
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          2    My husband is 85 years old, he's here, and he has

          3  had a heart condition and we had to lug that luggage

          4  two blocks.  Whereas we could of had our taxi stop

          5  right in front of the Park Row door.

          6                 I can't tell you how many

          7  inconveniences we've had. But in listening to the

          8  testimony of the Department of Transportation, they

          9  kept saying, well Park Row is not under

         10  construction, it's not having an event, but it's the

         11  only one that's being closed for 21 months.  Why?

         12  Does anybody give us a reason why?  For some vague

         13  reason they said for security.  But where is the

         14  security?  I think the security is all around the

         15  Police building.

         16                 Why is the little small street in

         17  front of Rite- Aid being closed?  It's about a

         18  hundred feet and there's nothing in there but the

         19  Park across and the Chatham Green behind.  Why is

         20  that street blocked?

         21                 Every time I want to go to the

         22  Pharmacy at the beginning, I have to show them ID to

         23  go to the drug store.  Now, that's ridiculous.  And

         24  again, Park Row, when they built the barrier right

         25  before the entrance to our apartments, why couldn't
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          2  they move it back twenty feet.  Then the people from

          3  Park Row could enter without having to tell the

          4  policeman.  There are two police cars there.  We

          5  have to tell the policeman, oh, we live in Park Row

          6  or have to show a driver ID and sometimes I was

          7  refused entrance into my own home.

          8                 So this is what I want to ask.  Who

          9  issued that permit because the Department of

         10  Transportation obviously said they didn't issue the

         11  permit.  Who did?  And if so, how come the

         12  Department of Transportation or the City Government

         13  allows that? I mean, and then when they say

         14  security, why is the Police building completely

         15  blocked off so that the residents in Chatham Green,

         16  if I look down on my balcony, I look like I'm in a

         17  barricade.  Then, all I see are Police cars parked

         18  all over.  Sometimes when they can't even find a

         19  place on the street, they park on the sidewalk and

         20  we can hardly walk on the sidewalk on Pearl Street.

         21  And this is very, very irritating and inconvenient

         22  to us.

         23                 Especially, I don't want to mention

         24  again the emergency vehicles but, I think a large

         25  number of the residents of Chatham Green are

                                                            77

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  elderly.  It's very difficult for us to get across,

          3  even now, when we walk to the subway.  Instead of

          4  having a two block walk across the Police Plaza, we

          5  can't do that any more, we have to take a long

          6  route. And is that route any less dangerous to a

          7  terrorist attack than the Police Plaza, or the

          8  Police building?

          9                 And City Hall, Broadway is not

         10  blocked off.  The other streets are not blocked off.

         11    I think Park Row is the only one that's blocked

         12  off.  And not only Park Row but the surrounding

         13  streets, like the Madison Street and the little

         14  hundred feet area between Park Row and St. James.

         15  That little street, why are there Policeman at one

         16  end and a sand truck at the other end?  And what are

         17  they protecting us from?

         18                 I mean we're afraid, we're just as

         19  afraid as anybody else but, why have we suffered the

         20  inconvenience that other people have not had.

         21  Because when I speak to other people I said how has

         22  9/11 affected you and they say, well that's

         23  something in the past.             But here, we are

         24  reminded every minute of the day. As soon as we walk

         25  out the door that we are blocked off, barricaded,
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          2  like in a prison.  So this is what I wanted to bring

          3  to the Council and I think maybe I have spoken

          4  somewhat on behalf of the residents of Chatham

          5  Green.  Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you Professor

          7  Sung.  And Paul Lee.

          8                 MR. LEE:  Thank you.

          9                 Good morning the Honorable Members of

         10  the City Council.  My name is Paul J. Q. Lee and I

         11  live and work in the Lower Manhattan area.  My

         12  family has operated a retail business in Chinatown

         13  for the last 113 years.

         14                 My simple question for this morning

         15  is, why are we all here?

         16                 All of us in this room support

         17  homeland security. All of us in this room support

         18  the war on terrorism and anti terrorism efforts.

         19  Chinatown is deeply concerned about security due to

         20  the fact that most of us work and live in the

         21  proximity of One Police Plaza, the Moynihan

         22  Courthouse and also 26 Federal Plaza.  The community

         23  is deeply concerned about security when Chatham

         24  Green and Chatham Tower apartments, our next- door

         25  neighbors of One Police Plaza.  One Police Plaza is
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          2  surrounded by Smith Houses 1,900 apartments;

          3  Southbridge Towers 1,651 apartments, Confucius Plaza

          4  Housing 850 apartments; Chatham Green Houses 420

          5  apartments; Chatham Towers Houses 240 apartments.

          6                 This comprises 5,061 apartments.

          7  Conservatively, there are about 25,000 residents in

          8  the 900 foot perimeter that One Police Plaza is

          9  trying to establish.  They base this perimeter on

         10  the potential attack by a Timothy McVeigh sized

         11  truck or bus bomb. Columbus Park is used on a daily

         12  basis, 365 days a year by our toddlers, senior

         13  citizens and teenagers across the street from the

         14  Moynihan Courthouse.  Our security needs are great.

         15                 However, City Agencies, led by the

         16  NYPD and the Office of Emergency Management (OEM)

         17  are using the war on terrorism to further their own

         18  domestic agendas and abuse local communities.

         19  They're interested in securing themselves and

         20  securing parking for themselves.  And this has been

         21  going on long before 9/11 but, these agencies are

         22  shamelessly using 9/11 and the secrecy issue to

         23  advance their own goals.

         24                 The most glaring and long- term case

         25  is around One Police Plaza headquarters.  The NYPD
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          2  is barricading itself within One Police Plaza and

          3  making itself secure, at the expense and to the

          4  detriment of the local community.  They have secured

          5  themselves in secret, have explained nothing to the

          6  community, and all in the name of security.  They

          7  cloak themselves in secrecy so that there can be no

          8  dialogue or no explanation for any of their actions.Both

          9  the NYPD and the Mayor's office have refused to meet

         10  with the residents and the businesses of the

         11  community and have referred us to our elected

         12  officials.  And I thank Alan and John and all of you

         13  for at least representing us at those meetings. I

         14  still continue to believe that the Mayor is one of

         15  our elected officials and he or his staff should

         16  meet with the community to have a dialogue.

         17                 The Chinatown community needs Park

         18  Row to be re opened so we can live our lives again.

         19                 Again, why are we here?  This issue

         20  is simply about Racism.  And it's about

         21  Institutional Racism that had been fought vigorously

         22  in the 1960s, 1970s and 1980s, but has been

         23  repopularized City- wide and nation- wide in the

         24  last decade.  And this is why a New York City Mayor

         25  made a policy of not meeting with members of the
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          2  African American community for two terms and

          3  applauded himself for a great political strategy.

          4  This is how Chinatown can have a street, Park Row,

          5  barricaded and have pop- up barriers erected across

          6  a major thoroughfare, so that the Timothy McVeigh

          7  sized bomb will not cause physical damage to One

          8  Police Plaza.  However, that bomb will vaporize the

          9  predominantly Chinese community.

         10                 My personal apologies to my neighbors

         11  here sitting here, my Italian, Jewish, African-

         12  American and Hispanic neighbors, that the Chinatown

         13  community does not have the political capital to

         14  resist this attack on our community by the NYPD.

         15  Unfortunately, you will be vaporized along with us

         16  should this attack occur as the NYPD and the OEM

         17  feel is probable.  Take comfort in the fact, that

         18  there will be minimal damage to the NYPD personal

         19  cars, as they are behind the security precautions,

         20  even though we, the community are not.

         21                 The NYPD motto is CPR, Courtesy,

         22  Professionalism, and Respect.  This community has

         23  not received Courtesy or Professionalism and has

         24  only received Disrespect from One Police Plaza.

         25                 My representatives on the City

                                                            82

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  Council, all of you, I demand, I urge, I beg you,

          3  protect other communities from being destroyed by

          4  these agencies.  Councilman Yassky, your downtown

          5  Brooklyn neighborhood is next, when OEM moves in.

          6  Councilman Addabbo, here with us today, One Police

          7  Plaza turned Mother Cabrini Park at the James

          8  Madison Plaza across the street from the Chatham

          9  Green into a parking lot.  It doesn't have one blade

         10  of grass on it.  And this has been a temporary

         11  situation for over ten years. I urge all of you to

         12  pass this bill.

         13                 Thank you very much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  I just

         15  have a couple of questions.  Real quick.

         16                 There has been absolutely no response

         17  from NYPD?

         18                 MR. LEE:  I've attended all the

         19  meetings where Councilman Gerson, Congresswoman

         20  Netty Valezquez, Speaker Silver have tried to

         21  convene.  I have not been at one where NYPD has

         22  shown up.  Now they have come to the meetings where

         23  the lawsuit has been filed.  I'm not a signatory to

         24  that.  So I haven't attended.  But, they've gone

         25  back to their original position which is it's
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          2  security and, this is going to sound funny, but it's

          3  really a horrendous kind of thing.  We can't tell

          4  you anything because it's secret and if we tell you

          5  we'd have to kill you.  I'm saying that to be funny,

          6  but it's really not funny.

          7                 Twenty- one months, we think there

          8  are ways to look at other solutions to this kind of

          9  thing.  There has been no public bidding for the

         10  pop- up barriers.  Okay.  They've selected a company

         11  for that.  But the company that does the barriers in

         12  front of the White House, keeping Pennsylvania

         13  Avenue opened, has been trying to get in there and

         14  bid, and during the bid process when they were in

         15  Washington for doing the Pennsylvania Avenue thing,

         16  they had to do a security and traffic study to

         17  present why their program was the one to be

         18  selected.  And they were selected in front of the

         19  White House.  Here, they can't even pull back 20

         20  feet to let the residents of Chatham Green in.

         21                 Personally, by the way Gentleman, I'm

         22  looking for Park Row to be reopened because I have

         23  been at the presentations by Dan Doctoroff and at

         24  the LNBC where they say Chinatown is so important,

         25  this is our link to downtown.  This is our link to
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          2  the transportation hub.  This is our link to the

          3  World Trade, the new World Trade Center.  We are

          4  completely cut off because of this.  So I'm looking

          5  for the total reopening of Park Row, with security

          6  and that, I think, it would also solve the residents

          7  problem at the same time.

          8                 MS. STETZER:  If I could also add,

          9  the NYPD did not show up at the Public Hearing the

         10  Community Board held.  They said they were going to

         11  but, they didn't.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  They said what?

         13                 MS. STETZER:  They said they would

         14  attend, but they didn't.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  We have

         16  been joined by Council Member Joseph Addabbo from

         17  Queens who is the Chair of the City Council's

         18  Committee on Parks and Recreation.  Councilman

         19  Addabbo.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Thank you

         21  Mr. Chair.  Good afternoon to all.  Thank you for

         22  your time and testimony today.

         23                 Mr. Lee, obviously as Chair of the

         24  Parks Committee. Mother Cabrini Park obviously is of

         25  concern to me.  You and I will have future
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          2  conversations regarding the condition of that.  You

          3  may be asking why you are here, but it's good that

          4  you are here, that we can work together.  Obviously

          5  since 9/11, these are trying times, these are

          6  difficult times and, we obviously have to get

          7  through them.  But the only way we get through these

          8  difficult and trying times is by working together.

          9  And that's why I appreciate all of you being here

         10  today because we only get through this by working

         11  together.  And with regards to Chairman Liu and to

         12  Members of this Committee and to my colleagues on

         13  City Council, we will get through these trying

         14  times, but only by working together.

         15                 So you raise great concerns today,

         16  this is a good piece of legislation which, Chairman

         17  Liu, I'd love to be a sponsor of, as well.  I'd like

         18  to add my name.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Absolutely.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  We'll add your

         22  name.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  But let's

         24  all keep in mind again, only by working together and

         25  obviously raising and addressing these issues can we
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          2  obviously solve the concerns that you have, or at

          3  least, attempt to do so.  But as far Mother Cabrini

          4  Park, we will have future conversations.

          5                 MR. LEE:  Thank you very much

          6  Councilman.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Oh Professor,

          9  I understand you have a pressing personal

         10  appointment Professor, so let me ask you one

         11  question first.  I appreciate everyone's patients.

         12                 Professor, how long have you lived in

         13  Chatham?

         14                 PROFESSOR SUNG:  I've lived there

         15  personally, since 1985.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Let me ask

         17  you.  You heard testimony earlier by a

         18  Representative of Department of Design and

         19  Construction, as to the type of discussions and

         20  conversations they had with residence along the

         21  Fifth Avenue section in Bay Ridge when they were

         22  thinking of changing a two way street into a one way

         23  street temporarily.  As far as you know, have the

         24  residents of your building benefitted from any of

         25  the similar type of discussion or dialogue?
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          2                 PROFESSOR SUNG:  No.  I haven't been

          3  asked.  I have not been interviewed.  I think we're

          4  all in a sort of limbo, not knowing why?  And who is

          5  behind this, because I, you heard the Department of

          6  Transportation Commissioner, every time you asked

          7  him the question, who issued the permit, he didn't

          8  say.  And it's still a mystery and I was going to

          9  say why didn't you ask him.  Who issued this permit?

         10    And we still don't have it answered.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Well, the

         12  closure was ordered by the Police Department.  It

         13  was a non- permitted closure and that is why we need

         14  to cover those types of closures in any legislation.

         15    But, let me just ask you as a follow- up, no one

         16  from DOT came to any of you in the Community Rooms

         17  in your building.

         18                 PROFESSOR SUNG:  Not that I'm aware

         19  of.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  I'm not aware

         21  of it either, but.

         22                 PROFESSOR SUNG:  And I don't think of

         23  any of our, the residence of Queens, Chatham Green

         24  are aware of that either.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  So there
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          2  really is a need, it sounds like for a procedure to

          3  assure that in these situations that the information

          4  and the dialogue take place.

          5                 PROFESSOR SUNG:  Right.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  It doesn't

          7  always happen the way it was described that it

          8  happened in Bay Ridge.

          9                 PROFESSOR SUNG:  But there seems to

         10  be no plausible reason why Park Row and even the

         11  streets, all the other streets around us are

         12  barricaded and manned with armed Police.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Actually,

         14  that's a good, that's a good point.  You had

         15  mentioned some of the other streets in the immediate

         16  Park Row vicinity, could you for the record review

         17  them for us that are --

         18                 PROFESSOR SUNG:  The street right in

         19  front of Rite Aid, that's a very, very, tiny street,

         20  it's Pearl Street, between Park Row and St. James.

         21  I'm sorry, is that right?  And then the other one is

         22  Madison Street leading to the subway.  That short

         23  block, has been off limits to all the residents

         24  around there because when we want to go to the

         25  subway, we now have to take a very long, an extra
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          2  three or four blocks to get around it.  And it's

          3  only a one block distance.  It's in front of the

          4  Police Headquarters on Pearl Street.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Well, we do

          6  have representatives and the Department's still

          7  here.  So I'd ask you to, we want you to follow- up

          8  on everything but could you at least immediately,

          9  follow- up on what you have just heard in this

         10  particular section.  I mean, let's try to get the

         11  whole picture resolved, but if we could do one step,

         12  that's a step forward.  So I'm going to ask you, you

         13  know we did originally Madison Street was closed and

         14  we complained.

         15                 PROFESSOR SUNG:  And part of Pearl

         16  Street.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  We got that

         18  open.  Let's see if we can't address this part of

         19  Pearl Street that the Professor has just testified

         20  about.  Right.  We have Pearl Street.

         21                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER IN BACKGROUND

         22  SPEAKING:

         23                 (Tape recorder did not pick up voice)

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  We're going

         25  to go through --
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          2                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER IN BACKGROUND

          3  SPEAKING:

          4                 (Tape recorder did not pick up voice)

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Okay.  We

          6  need to go through -- You're going to be testifying,

          7  right?  Maybe you should?  We do have the -- We've

          8  been focusing on Park Row proper and while we want

          9  to continue to focus on Park Row proper, I don't

         10  want -- I would like the DOT to follow- up

         11  immediately, with respect to these other street

         12  closures in the immediate vicinity.  We could

         13  certainly go back over the list.  But I'm glad you

         14  raise that point Professor. Let me ask Paul Lee.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I'm sorry --

         16  Council Member Gerson, just, if you could indulge me

         17  for one minute.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Please.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  We are going to --

         20  Council Member Gerson does have a few follow- up

         21  questions for this panel.  The next panel after this

         22  panel to complete it's testimony is Edward Lam,

         23  Shelly Estrim and Jeanie Chin and then the final

         24  panel for today will be Sanford Goldstein, Ingrid

         25  Maurer, Anna Goldstein and John Ost.
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          2                 I'm going to ask my colleague on the

          3  Transportation Committee to take over the Chair for

          4  a few minutes while I go downstairs and make an

          5  announcement with the Education Committee that I

          6  serve on with regard to school construction funds.

          7                 But I also wanted to welcome a group

          8  from the Lenox Hill Neighborhood House who is here

          9  with us in these chambers today.  They are

         10  constituents of Gifford Miller who is our Speaker.

         11  Welcome to City Hall and Chambers of the City

         12  Council.

         13                 So I apologize for interrupting this

         14  important testimony but my colleague Councilman

         15  Addabbo will take over for a few minutes.  Thank

         16  you.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  And

         18  Professor, we understand if you need to run, I know

         19  you did mention that you had a pressing engagement.

         20  But I thank you for your testimony and just actually

         21  before you step out I want to reiterate to you and

         22  to everyone here.  That I am going to continue

         23  aggressively to pursue, not only this bill but, the

         24  aim of this bill and that is immediate mitigation

         25  and thereafter reopening as soon as possible.  The
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          2  situation that you have been faced with is totally

          3  unacceptable. It's a disgrace to our City and it

          4  reflects utter callousness on behalf of our City

          5  with respect to residents who have endured the worst

          6  of the worst.  And I will not rest until we remedy

          7  that situation.  I give you that pledge.

          8                 PROFESSOR SUNG:  Well I want to thank

          9  our Councilman Gerson for the untiring effort that

         10  he has put towards relieving us of these ordeals

         11  that we have gone through.  And I think all of us

         12  are very grateful to you, Mr. Gerson, for what your

         13  doing.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Thank you.

         15  We'll celebrate when we get the job done.  But thank

         16  you very much.  Let me just ask -- but first let me

         17  just thank my colleague Chair Addabbo for adding

         18  your name to this legislation.  That's very

         19  important.  And on behalf of our community I thank

         20  you.  You heard the applause earlier so it's very

         21  appreciated.

         22                 Paul, Mr. Lee, we're in a formal

         23  situation.  Let me ask you, you parallel a question.

         24    You heard testimony earlier, as to the type of

         25  consultation which the Department engaged in the
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          2  business community of Bay Ridge, again, when they

          3  were considering closing, making a two way street, a

          4  one way street temporarily.  As a business owner in

          5  the immediate vicinity of Park Row, did you benefit

          6  from that type of consultation?  Did anyone approach

          7  you and your fellow business persons in the area to

          8  get your input and your thoughts as to Park Row and

          9  the effects of its closing and anything to mitigate

         10  that?

         11                 MR. LEE:  Number one, let me say

         12  this, that immediately following 9/11 we were

         13  interacting with the Commander of the Fifth

         14  Precinct.  At the time it was Deputy Inspector

         15  Ruffel (phonetic).  He was excellent and we accepted

         16  that there were things going on that nobody could

         17  control.  He's no longer the Commanding Officer but

         18  21 months later we have had virtually, from the

         19  immediate emergency, no contact whatsoever.  And

         20  everyone I know of regardless of tenant,

         21  businessman, whatever has been pro active in

         22  Chinatown, reached out to your office, Shelly

         23  Silver's office, on and on, directly through any

         24  contacts we had with NYPD and has gotten zero

         25  response.
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          2                 I apologize to you guys, I think

          3  you've been thoroughly disrespected by the NYPD as

          4  are elected Officials.  It's horrifying at the level

          5  of the status of our elected Officials that is being

          6  disrespected in this way, and I think it needs to be

          7  brought out.

          8                 By the way, your going to start to

          9  see I think, business failures on the Lower End of

         10  Mott Street.  Many of us, mine own included, my

         11  families in a very precarious position. People think

         12  we're crying wolf, but once the doors close, we

         13  won't be able to take any action to reopen them.  So

         14  this is a very dire situation.

         15                 These folks here, when I was a

         16  teenager, and I was one of the first families in

         17  Chatham Green, they kept me from running out into

         18  the street and getting run over on Park Row.  And I

         19  can do nothing today to help them.  I can not

         20  restore the bus stop that is more than an

         21  inconvenience to these folks.  So we haven't gotten

         22  this message to the City or the NYPD.  It's about

         23  parking for these guys.  And for them to have the

         24  temerity to say to us, that we should accept the

         25  inconvenience so they can have convenient parking is
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          2  an abominable situation.

          3                 My point was, during my testimony is,

          4  no one is more concerned about security than

          5  everyone of us here.  We actually live there.  If

          6  this bomb goes off, it would do severe damage to us

          7  personally.  It might kill any one of us or destroy

          8  our lives.  So, the fact that they're not having any

          9  dialogue with us is a horrible situation.  But we

         10  have had no contact, to answer your question.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  So it seems

         12  to me that there is a need to have some requirement,

         13  some regulation that would assure, at a minimum,

         14  that there be that contact, that flow of information

         15  which you have not received.

         16                 MR. LEE:  Absolutely, and I would

         17  suggest to the Community, where OEM is intending to

         18  move.  That every technique that they've used on us

         19  they will use in that downtown Brooklyn

         20  neighborhood.  And if they're not jumping out of

         21  their skin right now, they better be.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  That's a very

         23  good point. I'll certainly communicate it to my

         24  Colleague, David Yassky and I'm sure, and as you

         25  know he's a supporter of this bill.  Mr. Lee, one
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          2  last question, you mentioned the business closures

          3  that may be pending, impending.  The reopening of

          4  Park Row, would that have a beneficial impact on

          5  business?  Can you just discuss the relationship,

          6  for the record and for the Administration, the

          7  relationship between Park Row and small business in

          8  the Chinatown vicinity.

          9                 MR. LEE:  Certainly.  Right now,

         10  we've had many studies from LNBC.  Many studies have

         11  been funded which is watching each of our businesses

         12  die a slow death.  It's well documented now. At

         13  least $2 million dollars has been spent.  Many

         14  beautiful, wonderfully presented spiral bound

         15  studies on how we're dying daily.  But nothing is

         16  done actually to help us.

         17                 By reopening Park Row, it creates a

         18  flow.  It will open up Mott Street.  Mott Street is

         19  now so congested.  The lower end of Mott Street,

         20  from Canal South, which would open up into Park Row.

         21    Now, everything is backing up because they are all

         22  stuck on Worth Street.  So it's creating so many

         23  problems that, that is a no expense way of getting

         24  us back into business.  More people could come to

         25  Chinatown.  More people could enjoy it.  Everybody
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          2  knows it's a great place to be.  Nobody wants to go

          3  through the hassal, get down here, your stuck on

          4  Mott Street for an hour and a half. You pull over in

          5  a no parking area and get a $115 dollar ticket. It's

          6  a no win situation right now.

          7                 On top of that, the reality is, Worth

          8  Street is so congested that two and a half weeks ago

          9  my sister- in- law passed away.  We tried to bury

         10  her, but the DOT traffic enforcement person chased

         11  our Hearse away.  And I came out, I had a black suit

         12  and tie on.  I had white gloves as a pall barer and

         13  I asked the guy give us five minutes and we'll put

         14  the body in and we're out of here.  He said no way.

         15  You go now.  And we had to wait for the Hearse to go

         16  all the way around, about 45 minutes.  That, I can

         17  wait the 45 minutes, it is such an insult to my

         18  humanity.  To the humanity of this community, that

         19  it's unconscionable.  And I don't blame that

         20  Officer, by the way.  Because I  know he's under

         21  very strict instructions to keep Worth Street clear.

         22

         23                 But, by the way, I would add one more

         24  point.  Every time we go and we try to have some

         25  dialogue with law enforcement and NYPD, there's
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          2  always a punitive response.  They always come back,

          3  they always clear out or assign extra people to

          4  write more tickets.  That's an unconscionable

          5  situation.

          6                 By the way, we look forward down the

          7  road again, Councilman, talking about working

          8  together, to have the end of enforcement, only

          9  against the citizens, and not against NYPD personal

         10  cars.  Because they park everywhere with illegal

         11  placards and all of this and it's a common issue,

         12  and that has to stop.  And that will help us

         13  immensely.  That will help the businessman. These

         14  parking spaces are not for us, they are for our

         15  customers for our deliveries.  It's really damaging

         16  us.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Let me ask

         18  the DOT representative still here, again, as we make

         19  our list of follow- up. If you could address

         20  specifically the Mott Street, Worth Street and also

         21  the grade of Pearl Street traffic conditions.  We

         22  all know the remedies to reopen Park Row but, in the

         23  meantime, what can you do to alleviate the

         24  conditions, which I know Paul Lee has just correctly

         25  described.  And I'll look forward to getting that
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          2  response.

          3                 Let me just ask Ms. Stetzer, just

          4  again, in the interest of this first hearing, and

          5  the interest of finding ways to approve the bill, if

          6  possible, make it most effective, you hinted at some

          7  thoughts.  The model, the rough model is kind of the

          8  type of impact analysis as typically required in

          9  projects requiring EIS, Environmental Impact

         10  Statements but, do you have any particular thoughts

         11  in applying those type of requirements to these type

         12  of street closure situations.  But, do you have any

         13  thoughts as to how to improve community input in the

         14  process.  Or how to, to use your words, have more

         15  teeth in the process.

         16                 MS. STETZER:  Well, I'm not sure of

         17  the solution but, I mean we have the same problem

         18  with environmental impact statements.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Yes I know.

         20                 MS. STETZER:  You know, first of all,

         21  you get a study that is biased or even if it does

         22  show that there is a problem, then what can you

         23  have, what is done by it.  I mean unless you have a

         24  lawsuit it's sort of impossible to force an Agency

         25  to do anything.  As far as the legislation, I think
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          2  if it could just somehow -- it includes reporting to

          3  the Community Board and I think more of the

          4  community than the Community Board should be

          5  involved. But it doesn't have any language about

          6  including input from -- you know, it's one way, it's

          7  to the community, it doesn't include anything from

          8  the community.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  So that's a

         10  good point. But, certainly the intent was to

         11  identify those areas for study which the community

         12  would want, maybe we need to bring that out, clarify

         13  that and, allow the community flexibility to add

         14  areas that may not be boiler plate depending on the

         15  specific situations.  I appreciate that point.  And

         16  I share your frustration with the EIS and we

         17  possibly need to look to ways to improve it.  But

         18  clearly, we're better off having EIS than not.

         19                 MS. STETZER:  Absolutely.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  And we would

         21  be better off having something like that for this

         22  than nothing at all.

         23                 MS. STETZER:  Right.  I was just

         24  going by past frustrations.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  I understand.
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          2    I share those.  We share similar community board

          3  experience.  Okay.

          4                 Mr. Chair, thank you very much and

          5  that concludes my questioning of this panel.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very much

          7  Council Member Gerson for your questions and efforts

          8  and the panel thank you very much for your time and

          9  testimony.

         10                 MR. LEE:  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

         12                 Our next panel is Edward Lam, Shelly

         13  Estrim and Jeanie Chin.  And again, the last panel

         14  after this one would be Sanford Goldstein, Ingrid

         15  Maurer, Anna Goldstein and John Ost and they should

         16  be ready.

         17                 Just state your name for the record

         18  and please give your testimony.

         19                 MR. LAM:  Hi.  My name is Edward Lam.

         20    I am a member of the Board of Directors for

         21  Chatham Green.  I thank you for hearing me speak

         22  today.

         23                 I wanted to keep it fairly short and

         24  restrict it to our support of the Park Row bill but,

         25  I can see it's more supportive to detail some of the
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          2  facts that I have indicated in the letter here about

          3  the Park Row closure and, how it sort of backs the

          4  need for this bill itself.  I want to go through

          5  some of the things that are on the list and, I've

          6  been asked from some people who had to leave to add

          7  some others so excuse me for digressing a little bit

          8  from the list.

          9                 First off, there is a lot of things

         10  that we've already about.  I'm very impressed

         11  actually with Paul Lee's statement was very, very,

         12  well stated and it covered a lot.  I'm going to try

         13  avoid to be repetitive in that sense.  Park Row, the

         14  closure it has been in 18 and I am thankful Mr. Liu

         15  has corrected it to 21 months.  It is too extensive

         16  and, it's something that I agree needs now to have

         17  some kind of action taken and I will address my

         18  comments to that later.

         19                 The street closures, of course,

         20  resulted in the use of the streets as a local

         21  parking lot and, we've actually started to see them

         22  to mark places where they're going to designate

         23  who's going to park where.  It's one of those things

         24  where Councilman Liu had mentioned before, that as a

         25  street remains closed for a long enough period of
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          2  time, eventually the assumption is that it's a

          3  permanent thing.  Now, instead of being a temporary

          4  parking lot it becomes a permanent thing.

          5                 Since the last time that I spoke

          6  here, we've been moving forward with our litigation.

          7    We are in the lawsuits with the City, the NYPD, to

          8  try to attempt them to come to some resolution.  I

          9  do have some information regarding that.  But, let

         10  me just mention, that since that time, the Judge had

         11  not allowed us to stop the installations of the pop-

         12  up barricades.  The Police had mentioned that they

         13  were going to try their best to not put it in but

         14  not make promises.  I'm here to inform you that the

         15  barricades are in place.  They are not 100 percent

         16  functional.  I would like to make a comment that the

         17  barricade placements in arguments of need to close

         18  the streets is one thing, but it is also being used

         19  as entrance ways for the Police to come into the

         20  enclosed area.  In essence, allowing for a five or

         21  six special entrances for themselves.  And they're

         22  only, at this time, even considering for the

         23  residence, the use of one entrance, the Park Row

         24  entrance.

         25                 So again, we are talking about it's
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          2  okay for me to use but it's not okay for you to use.

          3    Different kinds of rules for different kinds of

          4  people.

          5                 Until the lawsuit was started, there

          6  was really no formal discussion.  There was a lot of

          7  discussion earlier about what happened with that.

          8  Let me be very clear about it, because I don't want

          9  it to be misinterpreted.  There was no official

         10  statement from the NYPD in regards to any of the

         11  requests or demands made by our complex.  And I say

         12  demands because, it went from common discussion to

         13  larger letters, to hand delivered letters, all of

         14  which were not responded to.  And we had to move

         15  forward with the lawsuit.

         16                 Since the time that we had the

         17  lawsuit, we have had one formal meeting with the

         18  NYPD and, we've had an informal meeting with respect

         19  to protocols.  Also, since that time we have

         20  received --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  I'm sorry

         22  with respect to whom?  I didn't hear.

         23                 MR. LAM:  With respect to protocol.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Protocol.

         25                 MR. LAM:  I'm sorry it's a
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          2  terminology that people are not very happy with but,

          3  chain of command, definitions, access controls,

          4  rules, things like that.  And that sounds very

          5  positive but I'd like to also add, and another thing

          6  that sounds positive is that they did formally

          7  return a statement to us with respect to the lawsuit

          8  itself.  I didn't anticipate needing to bring that

          9  here. If you did not receive a copy of it, I don't

         10  believe it's a problem for you to get it.

         11                 In essence, the statements were very

         12  open- ended, as expected.  That, due to security,

         13  they have the right and they will not provide

         14  anything with formal declarations for protocols.

         15  They will agree, at most, to stating generally what

         16  will be done.  They have no intention of specifying

         17  any criteria for the reopening of the streets.  So,

         18  as far as we're concerned at this point, we have not

         19  made much headway.

         20                 I think as it was very well stated

         21  earlier that it's not just the residence of the area

         22  but, it's also the businesses and the elected

         23  officials.  And by the way, I also thank you, Mr.

         24  Gerson for your efforts.  That, it is not a singular

         25  problem, it is now a larger, bigger problem.  And
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          2  our representatives have been trying to speak with

          3  the Police and I believe, Mr. Gerson, you yourself

          4  have said that, the description of the response that

          5  we've been getting from the Police is essentially a

          6  stone walling.

          7                 I still do think, that even though

          8  they're being brought to the table by this lawsuit,

          9  we're in essence getting the run around and stone

         10  walling is still existing.

         11                 The street closure is also and, I

         12  don't think it was well stated earlier.  It is also

         13  included a number of stores in this perimeter.  It

         14  was mentioned before that Madison Street is part of

         15  the streets that have been closed.  The businesses

         16  that I'm referring to are Rite- Aid, The

         17  Metropolitan and Mrs. Friggins Kitchen.  And I

         18  agree, and it was stated earlier that, there really

         19  is no significant need for that area to be closed.

         20  Paul had eluded before that traffic, the alleviation

         21  of traffic congestion, as well as the improvement of

         22  traffic flow in the area, will help with businesses.

         23

         24                 But I think one of the things that

         25  was not mentioned which is a good phrase to use is

                                                            107

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  foot traffic.  As people walk by the businesses they

          3  sometimes will see, go and, do business there. If

          4  they have ready access to it, they'll go there.

          5  It's one of those things of convenience.  You know,

          6  if I'm going to be redirected to a pizza store

          7  across the street I'm going to go there instead of

          8  going and have a formal dinner someplace where the

          9  streets are closed.

         10                 This is severely, severely impacting

         11  this business there.  I will not talk about specific

         12  things with those businesses there but, being on the

         13  Board of Directors I can tell you that there is a

         14  high possibility that these businesses might be

         15  included in some of what Paul Lee had mentioned

         16  before, in terms of closures, very soon.  They're

         17  suffering, and they're suffering greatly.

         18                 I've been asked to mention, and it

         19  has been mentioned before, that the redirection of

         20  traffic on Park Row has of course resulted in

         21  congestion on Worth Street, Mott Street, all the

         22  surrounding streets, but of course, we need to

         23  mention the pedestrian problem.  I had a situation

         24  where we had a Town Hall Hearing recently.  It was

         25  approached by a young child.  I would say young,
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          2  eleven years old.  He was asking me to make a

          3  statement and I was not able to make that statement

          4  at the time but, I will make it now.  Although he

          5  was prevented by his sponsor at the time for making

          6  a statement, he wanted me to express his concerns

          7  that he is very fearful, when it comes time to go to

          8  school or to go to the Park, that he can't cross the

          9  street.  The only way he can cross the street is to

         10  run across the street when he sees a large enough

         11  gap where the cars coming through.  Because the

         12  Department of Traffic, and I'm not being negative

         13  about what they're doing, they need to keep the flow

         14  of traffic going, they circumvent sometimes the

         15  structures that are there, like the street lights,

         16  which allow people to cross.  And in keeping the

         17  flow of traffic moving, they create scenarios which

         18  it's very dangerous for the kids to go.

         19                 Let me just mark out, that if you are

         20  not familiar with the area, Worth Street, which is

         21  one of the streets we've repeatedly talked about

         22  being over congested, is along side of Columbus

         23  Park.  And we're talking about a significant number

         24  of children who come from our area across that

         25  street to get to that Park and back.
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          2                 I have been also asked to mention

          3  that, in addition to having some of the cars parking

          4  on the sidewalks when they can't find parking, and

          5  by the way, a result so far as an act of good faith

          6  by the NYPD with respect to the lawsuit discussions,

          7  they have, at least at this time, removed some of

          8  the cars from the sidewalks.  So I'm getting, we're

          9  getting a little bit of headway there.  But they

         10  have not resisted from parking on the streets,

         11  anywhere they feel like.  This includes parking in

         12  front of hydrants.  And I know that the patience of

         13  the residence have become very thin to a point where

         14  many residence are actually approaching the people

         15  who are parking there and saying, look your blocking

         16  a hydrant, your giving danger to my building, please

         17  move it.  And the response is, I can park here.

         18  It's not acceptable.

         19                 Let me get it back to one other

         20  extension, from my own personal addition.  I'm sad

         21  to hear and shocked and appalled to hear actually of

         22  Paul's incident with the hearse having been moved.

         23  I'm sorry about it.  Chairman Liu, you didn't hear

         24  it.  Let me reiterate for your benefit.  Paul had

         25  mentioned that he, two in a half weeks ago I
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          2  believe, his sister or a close relative had passed

          3  away.  And at the time that they were going to bring

          4  out, and he was one of the Pallbearers, at the time

          5  they were going to bring out the body and bring the

          6  casket and put it into the hearse an official, and I

          7  believe he said a Department of traffic official,

          8  had ordered the hearse to not stay stationary and

          9  block Worth's Street and, hence had to make the

         10  hearse go around in a circle.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  That's

         12  outrageous.

         13                 MR. LAM:  Yes, yes, I agree, I agree.

         14    I had also in the last time that we had spoken

         15  didn't mention this scenario but since we're on the

         16  same discussion, and Paul had actually mentioned

         17  that a significant number, which brought the thing

         18  to mind.  He said the hearse took about 45 minutes

         19  to go around in a circle. And that 45 minutes sticks

         20  in my head.  Because every time I hear it I think

         21  about the scenario that I had.

         22                 Bringing my car up from Worth's

         23  Street, I'm sorry from Fulton Street, up Water and

         24  St. James, subsequently, St. James.  It took on

         25  average 45 minutes in the periods that I had to do
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          2  it.  And I did it for a number of days.  So it's not

          3  a singular incident.  And one of those days, my

          4  daughter was in the car and began vomiting.  And, I

          5  had no choice but to stay in that traffic and try to

          6  get as fast as I can.  And I can't tell you the kind

          7  of restraint that I had to apply to stop from taking

          8  the car and just drive it on the sidewalk, so I

          9  could get her someplace, either the hospital or

         10  home.  I didn't care.  So that is my personal

         11  addition to the situation that we have here.

         12                 Let me go back to the statement, my

         13  apologies for digressing and thank you for the time.

         14    I'm here mainly to support the Park Row bill.  I

         15  think it is imperative that some change in the law

         16  be made to support the periodic thorough report,

         17  reporting and reviewing of the street closures and

         18  that this review be performed by representatives of

         19  the community, namely the Community Board.  And of

         20  Council Members, I'm very thankful that your moving

         21  forward with this bill.  I'm very happy to hear that

         22  it is at this point.  I must say though, that I was

         23  a little disappointed with the statements made by

         24  the Department of Traffic but, I was very, very

         25  impressed by the direction that you Council people
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          2  have moved the statements toward something more

          3  positive.  I'm very hopeful that this is going to be

          4  something very positive.

          5                 I'd like to say that this bill, I

          6  think, and this is maybe some thought that has not

          7  been addressed, this bill will introduce the

          8  necessary checks and balances, one of the

          9  fundamental foundations for our government

         10  structure.  This bill will introduce the necessary

         11  checks and balances to deal with an existing

         12  loophole in the law.  That allows for the closure of

         13  streets, doesn't matter what Department, we're not

         14  saying that it's the NYC specifically, it's just

         15  anyone.  It allows for the closure of the streets

         16  without any requirements for justification or for

         17  the defining of criteria for the re- opening of the

         18  closed streets.  I think the 45 period is a

         19  reasonable period, I'm very happy you came up with

         20  that.

         21                 And I just want to thank you very

         22  much for your time.

         23                 MS. CHIN:  I'm Jeanie Chin from

         24  Chatham Towers.  I'm a Board Member and I just want

         25  to show everyone a picture of what the site looks
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          2  like.  This is the actual site.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  We're

          4  recording you, so we don't want to lose that.

          5                 MS. CHIN:  Oh, I see, I just want to

          6  show everyone a picture of what it looks like.

          7  Here's a map of the sites that's been closed to

          8  traffic.  It's larger than the World Trade Center

          9  Site which is over here.  The amount of streets that

         10  have been closed off to traffic and residents have

         11  been forced to walk all around it in some cases

         12  because of where they are located.           Anyway,

         13  after 9/11, the New York City Police Headquarters

         14  took over the streets and parks in front of our

         15  homes for their personal parking lots.  This was

         16  undertaken in the name of Homeland Security and

         17  according to Inspector Kogan (phonetic) of the Anti-

         18  Terrorism Bureau, the police union contract entitles

         19  officers to park near their precinct, even though

         20  headquarters already sits on top of both their own

         21  and, the public's thousand car municipal garage.

         22                 The closing of Park Row, the vital

         23  north/south artery in Chinatown community was done

         24  without any public review of the effects on the

         25  thousands of people who live and work there.
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          2                 The routing of five lanes of traffic

          3  at Chatham Square onto already congested Worth

          4  Street forces southbound traffic to snake westward

          5  before heading downtown.  And just as an aside,

          6  Pearl Street, which is one of the other few

          7  east/west streets downtown, was permanently closed

          8  by the Federal Government during the terrorism

          9  trials and then later, a fountain was put at one end

         10  of Pearl Street so that it's permanently blocked.

         11  So therefore, there is very few streets heading

         12  east/west going to the Holland Tunnel to begin with.

         13    And now with Pearl Street, now with Worth Street

         14  over congested, this is really a very chaotic

         15  condition.

         16                 Despite the City's severe budget

         17  crisis, a small army of traffic agents were hired to

         18  speed up vehicular traffic at Chatham Square through

         19  Lafayette Street, putting pedestrians at risk when

         20  they attempt to cross these streets.  Since there

         21  are no pedestrian crossings, markings or traffic

         22  lights running the entire stretch of Worth Street

         23  from Park Row through Center Street, seniors,

         24  children and the disabled are forced to cross

         25  streets clogged by frustrated and angry drivers
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          2  making for hazardous conditions.

          3                 The dispersal of the MTA buses that

          4  formerly navigated Park Row in both directions are

          5  now forced along alternate routes including Worth

          6  Street, adding to the chaos, cacophony and

          7  confusion.  The result in congestion, noise and air

          8  pollution is a daily assault on the physical and

          9  mental health of residents who live along these

         10  streets.

         11                 Losing our residential complex's

         12  street address will cause confusion and unnecessary

         13  delays for emergency vehicles as they are forced to

         14  navigate an additional layer of police bureaucracy

         15  in order to reach those in need of immediate medical

         16  or fire assistance.  Who in the NYPD and, who in the

         17  City will be liable for any communication failures

         18  that may cause life threatening emergency vehicle

         19  delays?  This is particularly a concern with large

         20  numbers of Chinese speaking residents.

         21                 Now the proposed forced routing of

         22  residents, visitors and delivery vehicles through a

         23  police identify checkpoint before going home is

         24  unprecedented in this City.  This is an invasion to

         25  our right to privacy and free access to our homes.
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          2  Yet there are no laws to protect us.  This also

          3  raises the ugly specter of racism.

          4                 Today we ask City Council Members to

          5  stand up for a community that has been abused for

          6  over 21 months.  We ask that no other community in

          7  the City be forced to live under virtual police

          8  state conditions under the guise of security.  Whose

          9  security?  The police say the barricades are

         10  temporary.  But, temporary can mean ten to twenty

         11  years.  They also told us that the closing of Pearl

         12  Street was going to temporary and we later found out

         13  that it is permanent.  Not knowing why and for how

         14  long we are to be imprisoned behind barricades has

         15  forced us into the untenable position of suing the

         16  City.  Allowing the NYPD or any entity to close

         17  streets, put people behind barricades and force them

         18  to identify themselves before they can go home, by

         19  citing security, are the actions of a totalitarian

         20  state, not a democracy.

         21                 Thousands of hours of my and other

         22  residents time for almost two years have been spent

         23  fighting the City's actions while we were given the

         24  runaround and stonewalled.  This was precious time

         25  that we could have better spent with our families,
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          2  and particularly our children, healing after 9/11.

          3  Instead we were unfairly forced to live like no

          4  other residents in this City.  All because we live

          5  next to Police Headquarters.

          6                 We thank our courageous elected

          7  officials who have supported us after countless

          8  meetings, hearings, and rallies. Today, we ask that

          9  you all vote so no other community be put through

         10  the ordeal of the Park Row residents.  Please vote

         11  for democracy.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very much

         13  for your testimony.  Just so, I want to take a brief

         14  moment to explain the procedures of the Council.

         15  But, I also want to ask the next panel to prepare to

         16  testify, Sanford Goldstein, Ingrid Maurer, Anna

         17  Goldstein and John Ost.

         18                 This is a first hearing of this

         19  proposed legislation and it is general practice that

         20  we consider the testimony taken at this first

         21  hearing and then at a later date schedule a vote.

         22  So we will not be voting on this bill today because

         23  we don't do that at the first public hearing.  And,

         24  as a matter of information for everybody who is a

         25  participant today, I want to thank you for speaking
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          2  into the microphone.  This hearing is recorded

          3  audibly, as well as, by video from the camera up

          4  there and it will be broadcast on the City channel

          5  in its entirety.

          6                 Thank you very much this afternoon,

          7  for coming out this morning and afternoon.

          8                 I'm sorry one question from Council

          9  Member Gerson.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  I think it's

         11  so important to make clear.  Did I understand you

         12  both correctly to say that during this time there

         13  has been no real, no communication, no back and

         14  forth between your buildings and your both, Ms.

         15  Chin, your a Member of the Board of Chatham Towers.

         16  Is that correct?

         17                 MS. CHIN:  Yes I am.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  And Mr. Lam,

         19  your the President of the Board.  Is that correct?

         20                 MR. LAM:  Actually, my term ended

         21  about three weeks ago.  But I'm still on the Board

         22  though.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Well,

         24  congratulations, I suppose.

         25                 MR. LAM:  Thank you.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  But okay.

          3  You certainly, both were in iron positions that you

          4  would have known if their was any kind of briefings

          5  to the Board, its representatives of the buildings

          6  along the lines that you heard described by the

          7  Department which took place elsewhere.  And none of

          8  that has happened, is that correct?

          9                 MR. LAM:  Right.  I'm not aware of

         10  anything for Chatham Towers.  I'll speak a little

         11  bit about Chatham Green.  Yes, I was privy to what

         12  was going on, which is why I added not just a stone

         13  walling statement but the run- around statement.

         14  Simply because they did provide us with liaisons,

         15  and I say plural, the reason why is because the

         16  liaisons that were assigned to us simply had a very

         17  negative attitudes towards dealing with us.  And

         18  there was no headway made.  Not even in terms of

         19  providing phone numbers, escalation procedures,

         20  things like that.  So we've gone through a number of

         21  them.

         22                 We have one person who does help, so

         23  I'm trying to be realistic in saying that they do

         24  have somebody who is willing to answer our call.

         25  Willing to do things to make calls to make things
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          2  happen.  But again, we are not looking for patched

          3  situations.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Right.

          5                 MR. LAM:  We're looking for a formal

          6  declaration for this.  This is the policy, this is

          7  how long it's going to be closed, and this is why.

          8  And we're not getting that.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Any

         10  discussion on how things serious -- how things can

         11  be made better for the community in terms of changes

         12  on the street?

         13                 MR. LAM:  As I mentioned before, we

         14  as a result of the lawsuit, have gotten together

         15  with the Police Department, that did not --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  I'm talking

         17  prior to the lawsuit.

         18                 MR. LAM:  Prior to the lawsuit.  No.

         19  No.  No responses, no formal responses.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Let me just

         21  say thank you for articulating, and Ms. Chin, is

         22  that your situation, your experience, as well?

         23                 MS. CHIN: I think we had just one

         24  meeting with the NYPD back in July of last year and

         25  they just decided security at the law suit meetings
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          2  and dealt with us in a very arrogant manner. And,

          3  you know, I've asked them to give us a call because

          4  we're part of the lawsuit.  They, the Police have

          5  not yet contacted me regarding what exactly do we

          6  need in terms of protocol or anything like that.

          7  They still have not called.  They've called, I know

          8  your building but, they still have not called us.

          9                 MR. LAM:  If I might add just one

         10  more comment. And, it was a side comment, but made

         11  in the heat of discussion as well, but somewhat

         12  arrogant.  Made by a representative of the NYPD,

         13  which is in essence is, if you really need to have

         14  some things done that the way you want it done,

         15  meaning, setting protocols and requiring us to do

         16  these things, the only way your going to make it

         17  happen is by a change in the law.  It was an

         18  arrogant statement again made in the heat of

         19  conversation but, you know, essentially it covers a

         20  lot of what we're doing here.  That the only way

         21  that we're really going to have this, this situation

         22  resolved, is to resolve this loophole problem that

         23  we have.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Well that's

         25  an important point because that's what this hearing
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          2  all about.  Changing the law.  So I appreciate your

          3  making that point.  And that was someone affiliated

          4  with the Police Department who made that statement?

          5                 MR. LAM:  Yes.  I wasn't in the

          6  meeting itself, so it's second hand, but I know it

          7  was said.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  That's okay.

          9                 MS. CHIN:  Yes.  But you know, our

         10  Attorney has pointed out to me several times that,

         11  every time I raise the issue of our rights being

         12  violated.  He says there's nothing protecting,

         13  nothing to protect you and that's exactly why you,

         14  the legislation, is so critical.  This is the only

         15  type of legislation that will protect other citizens

         16  from facing the same situation that we do today.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Well that is

         18  important, Mr. Chair, can we conclude this right on

         19  this note.  I think these witnesses really make the

         20  point far better than I have.  And that, as in Ms.

         21  Chin's point, that these are actions of a

         22  totalitarian state, not a Democracy and Mr. Lam's

         23  point for the need of checks and balances.  That

         24  what really, fundamentally is at stake here, is the

         25  application of our democracy.
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          2                 Our democracy is supposed to be about

          3  control of our fate of common destiny of the

          4  conditions with which we live in Democratic fashion.

          5    And here is something that has such a tremendous

          6  impact but, currently the law does not allow for

          7  checks and balances, does not allow for the

          8  oversight, and I think your point is very well made

          9  that we need to remedy that loop hole as you pointed

         10  out.

         11                 I think the other point you make and

         12  Paul Lee made is that while we may focus on streets

         13  and numbers and congestions, also what is

         14  fundamental, is the indignity that is going on.  The

         15  lack of regard, the lack of treating people as full

         16  fledged citizens when you have to incur the

         17  situation you went through, Mr. Lam with your

         18  daughter and, Paul Lee went through with the loss of

         19  his sister- in- law.  So we should not lose sight of

         20  that fundamental human element of dignity and

         21  respect as we go forward.

         22                 I thank you both very much for your

         23  tenacity and for your community commitment.  It's an

         24  honor for me to serve you.

         25                 MR. LAM:  Thank you for your time and
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          2  thank you.

          3                 MS. CHIN:  Thank you very much.

          4  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you for

          6  testifying with us today.

          7                 I want to note that we've been also

          8  joined by Council Member Diana Reyna from Brooklyn,

          9  a member of the Transportation Committee.  And now

         10  we will have our final panel of witnesses.

         11                 Mr. Goldstein, please proceed.

         12                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Yes.  Hello.  I just

         13  want to let you know that I am the President of

         14  Chatham Towers and a long standing Board Member, a

         15  long time Board Member and a Resident of Chatham

         16  Towers for many, many years.

         17                 What's interesting about this whole

         18  thing is that the DOT, Department of Transportation,

         19  was here and in my view of things they are the

         20  checks and balances.  They are the agency that

         21  should be protecting us.  Not restricting us.  Not

         22  ignoring us. Not preventing the enforcement of what,

         23  not only seems to be common sense, but seems to be

         24  the right priorities.

         25                 Instead of standing here and telling
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          2  us that it's going to cost us $10 million dollars to

          3  review these applications, they should be standing

          4  here saying that with all the apparent problems that

          5  are occurring, how come they aren't on the forefront

          6  of getting Park Row reopened to alleviate this

          7  problem.  That's what I don't understand.

          8                 Now if you do simple mathematics of

          9  their numbers and take the 8,400 street closing's

         10  and not discount it for partial closing's or

         11  anything else and, you divide it into $10 million

         12  dollars, you have $118,000 dollars to review what's

         13  already been written down and come to terms with

         14  their application in the first place.  Besides the

         15  fact, that they said they would pass most of the

         16  costs through to the Agency or the business that was

         17  asking for the road or the street to be closed.  So

         18  again, this is an example of double speak.

         19                 The situation of the checks and

         20  balances is here to protect the community and the

         21  neighborhood, not the bureaucracy. And I think

         22  that's what the point of this legislation is and

         23  it's needed and very important because it's to

         24  protect the community and the neighborhood.

         25                 We lived in a vibrant community.
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          2  This was a very diverse neighborhood.  Yes, mostly

          3  Chinatown and Asian but it represents a lot of cross

          4  section of people living in this community.

          5  Everything is changing and it shouldn't be.  The

          6  only thing that hasn't changed after 9/11 is that

          7  our community is still under siege.  That's what

          8  hasn't changed.

          9                 Everybody else in other neighborhoods

         10  have forgotten about 9/11 from a day to day stand

         11  point.  They don't forget about it from the

         12  terrorism and what they watch on TV.  But we are

         13  faced with it when we come into work, when we come

         14  into our homes, when we leave our homes and,

         15  certainly when anybody tries to visit us. I mean,

         16  this is our home.  In order to have somebody visit

         17  us, they have to go through check points and

         18  sometimes be turned away.               A couple of

         19  weeks ago, my brother- in- law came in to celebrate

         20  his birthday with his family.  Well, we sat in the

         21  restaurant for two hours while he tried to find

         22  parking.  It wasn't the burden to the restaurant.

         23  Normally we were tieing up a table for twelve

         24  people.  We didn't have any problem sitting there

         25  for two hours.  They said sit, it's okay.  There was
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          2  nobody coming into the Restaurant to sit at the

          3  table.  This is unheard of.

          4                 And after dinner he promised us that

          5  this would be the last time he spends his birthday

          6  visiting us in Chinatown, even though this is a

          7  tradition with us, to have a chinese meal in

          8  Chinatown.  We'll now have to go to visit him for

          9  the meal because he can't take the couple of hours

         10  and the aggravation of trying to find parking and

         11  trying to even get into the streets that our

         12  neighborhoods are located on.  People won't come

         13  down here and visit us.  It's just too inconvenient

         14  for them to come down here.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  Your

         17  also going by Anna Goldstein?  Does Anna Goldstein

         18  have any comments?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Did you push

         20  the button.

         21                 MS. GOLDSTEIN:  Hi, my name is Anna

         22  Goldstein.  I've been residing at Chatham Towers for

         23  17 years and I'm a mother with two boys.

         24                 I want to say, that as a pedestrian,

         25  the Park Row closing has made it extremely dangerous

                                                            128

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  to cross Worth Street and all the intersections at

          3  Chatham Square.  There's a constant stream of

          4  traffic due to the closure of Park Row.  There's no

          5  safe time to cross the street and it is especially

          6  difficult for the elderly, the handicapped, and

          7  people with children.  The walk sign is an euphemism

          8  because we literally have to run and dodge turning

          9  cars. The traffic police are there but they

         10  disregard the pedestrians because there job is to

         11  keep the traffic moving.

         12                 In this time of budget crisis, the

         13  City needs to pay six police to direct the traffic

         14  all day.  Emergency closure is understandable, but

         15  temporary should have a projected time limit. Okay.

         16  I want to thank you for proposing this bill to

         17  reopen Park Row.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  And now

         19  Ingrid Maurer who is representing Danny Chen.

         20                 MS. MAURER:  My name is Ingrid

         21  Maurer.  I live at Chatham Towers and I'm here to

         22  read the statement by Danny Chen of Chatham Green,

         23  who unfortunately could not be here today.  Thank

         24  you.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  And Danny, I
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          2  believe is also Chair of the Civic --

          3                 MS. MAURER:  Civic Center Residence

          4  Coalition, that's correct.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Thank you.

          6                 MS. MAURER:  This is his testimony.

          7                 Members of the City Council.

          8                 Thank you for this opportunity to

          9  testify on this very important issue regarding

         10  street closures and the need to reestablish checks

         11  and balances in our government.  I would especially

         12  want to thank my old friend, Council Member Gerson,

         13  who has championed the issue of the impact on street

         14  closures on the tens of thousands of residents of

         15  the neighborhoods surrounding Police Headquarters.

         16                 For 20 months, 21 now, we have

         17  suffered, under the umbrella of security, abuse on

         18  an unprecedented level from those who have been

         19  charged to protect us.  For those who are not

         20  intimately familiar with the issues facing the

         21  residents of Chinatown and surrounding communities,

         22  I offer the following chronology of events.

         23                 Following the attacks of 9/11, access

         24  to the streets below 23rd Street was severely

         25  restricted.  After a short time, the secure area
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          2  would move to below 14th Street and then below Canal

          3  Street.

          4                 For the area bounded by Chatham

          5  Square, Worth Street, St. James Place, and Frankfort

          6  Street, except for the re establishment of the MTA

          7  bus route, the area never thawed.  To this day, it

          8  remains frozen.  Despite New York City

          9  advertisements, presumable to tourists, that all the

         10  streets have re- opened.

         11                 In February of 2002, Council Member

         12  Gerson and I met with Police Commissioner Kelly

         13  about the Pedestrian access issues facing our

         14  residents, including seniors and disabled.  At that

         15  point, residents were not allowed to even walk on

         16  the streets in the NYPD extended frozen zone while

         17  we saw that deliveries of sandwiches into Police

         18  Headquarters go uninspected and un feathered.  They

         19  have their priorities.  At the meeting, Kelly

         20  promised to quote, "take care of it".  He never did.

         21                 For Headquarters security matters,

         22  Kelly also referred Council Member Gerson to Capt.

         23  McCarthy of the Fifth Precinct and I was told to go

         24  speak to the Capt. Of the Chinatown Auxiliary

         25  Police, whom I later found serves primarily as a
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          2  translator for the Chinese speaking community.  At

          3  that meeting, I did not speak a word of Chinese.

          4  English is my first language.  At this point, I

          5  realized that race and racial perceptions may be

          6  playing a role in Headquarters policies.

          7                 In March of 2002, I met with a

          8  Lieutenant in Headquarters Security to discuss the

          9  problems of police commuter cars parked in the bus

         10  stops along Park Row, making it dangerous and

         11  difficult for our seniors and disabled to flag down

         12  and even board buses.  During the discussion, the

         13  Lieutenant joked that the problem would be solved if

         14  the bus routes were taken away. Unfortunately, he

         15  was not joking.  On May 6th, the NYPD closed Park

         16  Row to buses, eliminating three bus stops and

         17  affecting the M9, M15, M103, and B51 lines and

         18  securing about 20 more parking spaces for their

         19  commuters.  Again, they have their priorities.

         20                 In April of 2002, in spite of not

         21  being able to get to Headquarters security to

         22  identify the commanding officer, precinct of the

         23  Park Row checkpoint, Council Member Gerson succeeded

         24  in getting the NYPD to move the Park Row checkpoint

         25  south of the Chatham Green driveway.  Prior to this
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          2  move, our residents had difficulties with access,

          3  with Access- A- Ride and other services reaching our

          4  property.  To this day, car service to our property

          5  is an issue.

          6                 Most recently, the NYPD has installed

          7  a permanent barrier on the northern end of Park Row.

          8    Again north of the Chatham Green driveway,

          9  threatening us with institutionalized control of

         10  access to our private property.  Chatham Towers and

         11  Chatham Green have filed a lawsuit over this action,

         12  which we understand is precedent setting.  It

         13  certainly feels precedent setting.

         14                 We need to restore checks and

         15  balances in our government as a result of the

         16  attacks on 9/11.  I'm not certain that the DOT, a

         17  branch of the executive, who has not had a great

         18  history of pushing back against the NYPD, is the

         19  best place to address NYPD actions but, it is a step

         20  in the right direction.

         21                 And it is signed, Respectfully, Danny

         22  Chen, Resident, Chatham Green.

         23                 I'd also like to add when I first

         24  heard about this proposed legislation, my initial

         25  reaction was, you mean that doesn't already exist.

                                                            133

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  I had no idea that it was possible to just close a

          3  street without any time limits, without any reasons

          4  stated, without any feedback to the community,

          5  without any studies.  And yet, apparently, this is

          6  the case and it is not just about Park Row.

          7                 Eighteen months ago we would not have

          8  thought, certainly not 21 months ago, that such

          9  legislation would be necessary because it was

         10  conceivable that something like this could happen.

         11  We don't know what the future holds so we don't know

         12  if down the line, some where, some other street

         13  could just be used up for no given reason

         14  indefinitely and without any mitigation.  So I

         15  really do appreciate this legislation.  Thank you

         16  for your support.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  And Mr.

         18  Ost, thank you for your patience this morning and

         19  afternoon and you will be our last witness for

         20  today's hearing.

         21                 MR. OST:  Good afternoon.  My name is

         22  John Ost.  I serve on the Board of Directors of

         23  Southbridge Towers, a middle income housing

         24  cooperative comprised of almost 5,000 residents, the

         25  majority of whom are seniors.
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          2                 Southbridge is affiliated with the

          3  Civic Center Residents Coalition, a neighborhood

          4  organization of approximately 15 thousand residents

          5  and many businesses in the Chinatown community.

          6                 Southbridge is located just four

          7  blocks east of the World Trade Center site and

          8  directly in the path of lower Manhattan's prevailing

          9  easterly winds.  This location resulted in our

         10  becoming living victims of the horror of September

         11  11th, remaining in our homes and suffering months of

         12  smoke and dust, closed streets, and military

         13  security.  In short, we endured a major traumatic

         14  interruption to our normal lives.

         15                 Because of continued street closures

         16  during the months that followed, I watched many of

         17  my favorite stores and restaurants remain closed,

         18  and eventually go out of business.

         19                 Now, well over a year after that

         20  fateful day, Park Row and many of our local streets

         21  remain closed.  Our public spaces, both parks and

         22  streets, have become the private parking lots for

         23  the personal vehicles of police officers.  All this

         24  in the name of security and with no accountability

         25  to our elected representatives.
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          2                 We need to deal more appropriately

          3  with the security issue in an age of terrorism.  Our

          4  local closed streets, particularly Park Row, must be

          5  reopened to traffic.  At present, the area

          6  surrounding Police Plaza, less than half a block

          7  from Southbridge Towers, bears more resemblance to

          8  an occupied war zone than to a mixed- use Manhattan

          9  community, so intrusive is the police presence.  The

         10  persistent street lane closures have created massive

         11  traffic jams, air pollution and noise in the

         12  surrounding community. I invite those members of

         13  this committee, who might not be familiar with the

         14  neighborhood, to tour the Police Plaza area and see

         15  if you would feel comfortable living or doing

         16  business in this area. Consider also the effects of

         17  continued street closures on ambulance and fire

         18  response times, public transit times and the impact

         19  on tourism.

         20                 What we absolutely need in our

         21  already traffic congested area, and probably City-

         22  wide, is fewer street closing's for street fairs,

         23  walks, runs, bike marathons, skateboard events and

         24  basketball events.  It seems that there is not one

         25  single coordinating agency issuing street closure
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          2  permits that is responsible for seeking the

          3  community permission before intruding on its space.

          4                 I think this legislation would go

          5  along way toward addressing these issues that I've

          6  outlined and I thank you for considering these

          7  issues.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very much

          9  for your testimony.  We have a question from Council

         10  Member Gerson.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  I just want

         12  to complete the record by asking you the questions

         13  I've asked of previous witnesses.

         14                 Have either of you and your

         15  representative capacities or your individual

         16  resident capacities been invited to meetings with

         17  either DOT or the Police Department prior to the

         18  lawsuit and not including any related to the

         19  lawsuit, to solicit your input on the impact and on

         20  ways of dealing with the impact in addition to the

         21  Park Row closure itself?

         22                 MR. OST:  In relating to Southbridge

         23  Towers we're on the south side of the Bridge as

         24  opposed to the other developments which are on the

         25  north side of the bridge and no one from the Police
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          2  Department has ever contacted us to discuss anything

          3  related to this issue.

          4                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  As far as Chatham

          5  Towers goes and my knowledge, working knowledge of

          6  this situation, we've never been contacted, I've

          7  never been contacted and have no knowledge of any

          8  contact by any of the Departments.

          9                 I might also add that this lawsuit is

         10  a very costly one for both Chatham Green and Chatham

         11  Towers.  At this point, Chatham Towers has been

         12  going over its own budget and had to reassess our

         13  expenses and have determined that since last year

         14  our cost to carry the building has gone up by 40

         15  percent and for us to have to fund a lawsuit now, to

         16  get what should be -- to get respect and to get a

         17  hearing, and to get the checks and balances, is

         18  economically, you know, very unfair.  I don't know

         19  what other words I could use but, and we will

         20  continue funding the lawsuit because it is

         21  necessary.  Thank you.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Thank you.

         23  Let me just also say the statement that you mean

         24  there's not something like this already on the books

         25  or in the law, was exactly how I felt when I came to
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          2  that realization.  The point that streets are

          3  community space and do have an impact and again, the

          4  whole idea of democracy is we should collectively

          5  through democracy control our community space.  It

          6  seems to me that something has slipped through here.

          7

          8                 If such a major street in such close

          9  proximity to your buildings have been closed, and

         10  you have not been invited to register the input of

         11  that and then, even when you saw it on your own

         12  initiative, as I know has been the case, I have not

         13  had the full forum that seems to me that there

         14  really is a need for this type of procedure.  And

         15  it's been pointed out that it should apply

         16  throughout the entire City to protect all

         17  communities.  So I think you've made that point, you

         18  know, very, very clearly.

         19                 Let me just, just one comment on the

         20  lawsuit and as it relates to the Police Department

         21  response.  Prior to the lawsuit, at long last

         22  Commissioner Kelly and Commissioner Weinshall

         23  (phonetic), I think you all know, but I want

         24  everyone to be aware of this, including members of

         25  my Committee, did meet with all the elected
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          2  officials at our request.  They did not allow any

          3  other folks into the meeting but, we did meet.  You

          4  know, I was there, Shelly Silver was there, Martin

          5  Connor was there.  And, I actually wound up at that

          6  meeting feeling a little bit optimistic because we

          7  wound up with a commitment that the City under the

          8  Mayor's office would create a Task Force.  And

          9  actually, Commissioner Kelly himself, did express an

         10  openness to considering different types of remedies

         11  and, studying one lane barricaded reopenings and

         12  partial and temporary reopenings and, did express an

         13  interest in dealing with the situation and said

         14  that's what the Task Force would do That was the

         15  last we heard just about the Task Force except for

         16  times when I would call.  I think it was actually

         17  one follow- up staff level meeting that was supposed

         18  to lead to then the full fledged operation of the

         19  Task Force.  And I would push and push and the most

         20  recent response I got is, now that we have the

         21  lawsuit, we can not have the Task Force.

         22                 Well, I don't fully understand that.

         23  I know that there have been some court ordered

         24  dialogues but I know that representatives from the

         25  City here, and we need to get something going.  I
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          2  mean we are going to, this is my concluding

          3  statement Mr. Chair, we are going to pursue this

          4  legislation that Chair Liu outlined the process of

          5  your testimony, the testimony by all the witnesses,

          6  including the Department has been helpful.  We will

          7  follow- up in fine tuning in making this bill even

          8  better, but we're certainly going to push to move

          9  forward on the legislative front.            And as

         10  I anticipated, I just saw our great Chair nodding

         11  his head in the affirmative.  But in the meantime, I

         12  appeal to the Administration, as we can do better.

         13  You know, the lack of responsiveness at best,

         14  reflects a lack of creativity on the part of our

         15  Departments and it wears a lack of consideration and

         16  compassion.  And neither are acceptable.

         17                 So, I applauded Commissioner Kelly

         18  when he made the commitment that he did at that one

         19  meeting.  I asked him to renew the commitment, and

         20  by the way, Commissioner Weinshall was there also

         21  and I believe, you know, they were both on the same

         22  page.  So my plea is renew that commitment.

         23                 You can deal with the parking,

         24  there's no reason why these vehicles need to be

         25  parking illegally, blocking hydrants, blocking
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          2  entrances which we know to be the case.  We could do

          3  better immediately.  Some of the smaller streets

          4  that have been discussed can probably, immediately,

          5  be reopened and there's steps that can be

          6  immediately taken with respect to Park Row itself.

          7                 So I urge you, go back to your

          8  Departments and come back to us in the very near

          9  future with some very concrete improvements and, so

         10  we can reassure the community and do the right

         11  thing.  And when we do the right thing for the

         12  community in this way, when we assure ambulance

         13  access and when we assure comfort and security for

         14  those who live there, we're also assuring security

         15  for all of Lower Manhattan.  The two go together.

         16                 As any security expert will tell you,

         17  when you have residents who are barricaded or

         18  inconvenienced who are forced to take routes with

         19  which they are not familiar, that undermines

         20  security and allows for people who would do harm to

         21  have even better access to the community and better

         22  opportunity to do harm. So let's do better for the

         23  community and for security and, do the right thing.

         24                 I thank all the witnesses and thank

         25  you for your on going patience, not only in this
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          2  hearing but in this on- going battle but it's

          3  because of your patience and your tenacity that will

          4  improve things for your community.  Thank you very

          5  much.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you Council

          7  Member Gerson. I want to thank the witnesses for

          8  appearing at today's hearing. Thank you.

          9                 With that, this meeting of the

         10  Transportation Committee is adjourned.

         11                 (Meeting concluded at 1:10 p.m.)
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